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PEDRO C. ORTIZ LEDEE 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Juana Diaz, Puerto Rico 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental acttv1ttes, business type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Juana Diaz 
(Municipality), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the 
Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project 
No. 63-033-0690660049), a business-type activity (proprietary fund) of the Municipality, which Single Audit 
report, reflects total assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues and expenses of $1 ,263,983, $1 ,255,581, $8,402, 
$443,848 and $491,987, respectively, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Those financial 
statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, 
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Villas del Parque, is based on the report of the other auditors. 

Except as discussed in the following paragraphs, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinions. 

The Municipality did not have a complete, updated and accurate accounting records of the capital assets in 
order to obtain sufficient and competent evidential matter related to the capital assets reported in the 
accompanying statement of net assets for $68,409,945, net of accumulated depreciation of $30,938,307. Also, 
during the fiscal year the Municipality did not recorded certain capital assets additions and we were unable to 
obtain the detail of the reclassification of the construction in progress in the accounting records. In addition, 
because of the inadequacy of the accounting records, we were unable to form an opinion regarding the capital 
assets reported in the accompanying statement of net assets. 

As discussed in Note 12 to the financial statements, the Municipality did not comply with the requirements 
established by Statement No. 18, Accounting/or Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post Closure 
Care Costs, issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and the regulations set forth by the U.S. 
Environment Protection Agency. At June 30, 2012, the accompanying statement of net assets present a 
liability for closure and post closure care costs of the Municipality's solid waste landfi ll using an estimate 
made by the management of the Municipality and not based on a study of the actual landfill capacity used. 
The amount by which this departure would affect the liabilities, net assets and expenses of the governmental 
activities is not reasonably determinable. In addition, because of the inadequacy of the accounting records, we 
were unable to form an opinion regarding the liability for closure and post closure care cost of the 
Municipality landfill reported in the accompanying statement of net assets. 

P.O. Box 352, Palmer Street, No. 66 North, Guayama, P.R. 00785 
Tel (787) 864-5490 - fax (787) 864-5590 - cpapedroc@hotmail.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Because of the significance of the matters discussed in the preceding paragraphs, the scope of our work was 
not sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not express, an opinion on the financial position of the 
governmental activities of the Municipality at June 30, 2012, or the changes in financial position, thereof for 
the year then ended. 

In addition, in our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business­
type activities of the Municipality, as of June 30, 2012 and the changes in financial position and cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

In addition, in our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to previously present fairly, in a ll material respects, the respective financial position of each major 
fund, proprietary fund and aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Municipality, as of June 30, 2012 and 
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 31, 2013, on 
our consideration of the Mun icipality's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and the budgetary comparison information on pages 4 through 17 and 81 through 82 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries,.the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Municipality's financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non- Profit Organizations, and is also not a 
required part of the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility 
of management and was derived from and relate directly to underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
infonnation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or 
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

~zq{~ 
License Number 5200, 

Guayama, Puerto Rico 
March 31, 2013 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 
COMMONWEAL TH OF P UERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

As management of the Municipality of Juana Diaz (the Municipality), we offer readers the following 
discussion and analysis of the Municipality's financial activities reported in the accompanying basic 
financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. We encourage readers to consider 
the infonnation presented here in conjunction with additional information that is furnished in the 
accompanying financial statements, which follow this narrative. 

Besides, this document includes comparative data with prior year as this information was available for the 
fiscal year ended on June 30, 2011. This Management 's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is prepared in 
order to comply with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, "Basic 
Financial Statements - and Management 's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments", 
and among other purposes, to provide the financial statements users with the following major 
information: 

• a broader basis in focusing important issues; 

• acknowledgement of an overview of the Municipality's financial activities; 

• provides for an evaluation of its financial condition as of the end of fisca l year 2011-2012 compared 
with prior year results; 

• identification of uses of funds in the financing of the Municipality's variety of activities and; 

• asses management's ability to handle budgetary functions. 

FINANCIAL IDGHLIGHTS 

Government-Wide Highlights: 

• Total Net Assets of the Municipality Governmental Activities as of the end of the indicated fiscal 
year amounted to $45,479,358 or fifty seven percent (57%) of total assets. 

• The Municipality's Governmental Activities total Net Assets decreased by ($257,494) or a one 
percent (I%) from the prior fiscal year-end balance. 

• At the end of fiscal year 2012, total liabilities of the Municipality Governmental Activities amounted 
to $34,368,031. Out of said amount", $30,416,340 corresponded to long-term I iabilities of which 
$28,072,956 represented the outstanding balance of bonds and notes issued. The Municipality 
continued to meet all debt service requirements, most of which was paid from self generated 
revenues. 

Governmental Funds' Highlights: 

• As of the close of the current fiscal, the Municipality's Governmental Funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $5,377,928 or $3,5 17,986 under the similar figu re corresponding to the 
previous fiscal year 20I0-2011. 

5 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, the deficit of the Municipality's General Fund amounted to 
($936,227), or $404,621 more than the previous fiscal year. 

• The actual General Fund budgetary activities resulted in a favorable balance of $654,03 I. 

Proprietary Fund Highlights: 

• The total restricted net assets of the proprietary fund amounted to $8,402 which are restricted for the 
operations of federally funded programs. 

• The total restricted fund net assets of the proprietary fund decreased by $47,803 during the fi scal year 
ended June 30, 2012. 

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The purpose of financial reporting is to provide external users of basic financial statements with 
information that will help them to make decisions or draw conclusions about the Municipality. There are 
many external parties that use the basic financial statements of the Municipality; however, these parties 
do not always have the same specific objectives. In order to address the needs of as many parties as 
reasonably possible, the Municipality, in accordance with required financial reporting standards, presents 
this Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) as an introduction to the accompanying basic 
financial statements. This narrative represents an overview and analysis of the financia l activities of the 
Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Because this MD&A is designed to focus on the 
current year activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, we encourage readers to consider the 
information presented in this MD&A in conjunction with the additional information furnished in the 
accompanying basic financial statements. 

The Municipality's basic financial statements include three components: (I) government-wide financial 
statements (GWFS), (2) fund financial statements (FFS), and (3) notes to the basic financial statements 
(NBFS). This report also contains additional required information in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves. These components are described below. 

The basic financial statements focus on: (I) the Municipality as a whole (government-wide financial 
reporting) and, (2) the Municipality's major individual governmental and proprietary funds. Both 
perspectives allow the users to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or 
government to government) and ephance the Municipality's accountability. The components of the basic 
financial statements are described below. 

a) Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The GWFS are composed of: (I) the statements of net assets (SNA) and (2) the statement of activities 
(SA). These financial statements can be found immediately following this MD&A. GWFS are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Municipality's operations as a whole in a 
manner similar to private-sector business. These statements provide short-term and long-term 
information about the Municipality's financial position, which assist the Municipality's management 
to determine the economic condition at June 30, 2012. The G WFS are prepared using methods that 
are similar to those used by most private businesses. 

6 
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MUNICIPALITY OF' JUANA DiAZ, 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

Management' s Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Municipality that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental activities (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities) . 

1. Statement of Net Assets 

The purpose of SNA is to attempt to report all assets owned and all liabilities owed by the 
Municipality. The Municipality reports of all of its assets when it acquires ownership over the 
assets and reports all of its liabilities when they are incurred. For example, the Municipality 
reports buildings and infrastructure as assets, even though they are not available to pay the 
obligations incurred by the Municipality. On the other hand, the Municipality reports liabilities, 
such as claims and judgments, bonds and notes payable, obligations under capital leases, 
compensated absences and certain accounts payable and accrued liabilities, even though these 
liabilities might not be paid until several fiscal years into the future. 

The difference between the Municipality's total assets and total liabilities reported in SNA is 
presented as net assets, which is similar to the total owners' equity reported by a commercial 
enterprise in its financial statements. Although the purpose of the Municipality is not to 
accumulate net assets, as this amount increases or decreases over time, such amount represents a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Municipality is either improving or 
deteriorating, respectively. 

2. Statement of Activities 

The SA presents information showing how the Municipality's net assets changed during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2012, by presenting all of the Municipality's revenues and expenses. As 
previously discussed, the items reported in SA are measured in a manner similar to the approach 
used by a commercial enterprise in that revenues are recognized when earned or established 
criteria are satisfied, and expenses are recorded when incurred by the Municipality. 
Consequently, revenues are reported even when they may not be collected for several months 
after the end of the fiscal year and expenses are recorded even though they may not have used 
cash during the current year. 

Although SA looks different from a commercial enterprise's income statement, the difference is 
only in format, not substance. Whereas the bottom line in a commercial enterprise represents its 
net income, the Municipality reports an amount described as net change in net assets, which is 
essentially the same concept. 

The focus of SA is on the net cost of various activities provided by the Municipality. The 
statement begins with a column that identifies the cost of each of the Municipality's major 
functions. Another column identifies the revenues that are specifically related to the classified 
governmental functions. The difference between the expenses and revenues related to specific 
functions/programs identifies the extent to which each function of the Municipality draws from 
general revenues or is self-financing through fees, intergovernmental aid, and other sources of 
resources. 

7 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEALTH OF P UERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

This statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
each function of the Municipality. 

GWFS and FFS present all of the Municipality's governmental and business-type activities, which are 
supported mostly by taxes, intergovernmental revenues (such as federal and state grants and 
contributions), and charge for services. All services normally associated with the Municipality fall 
into this category, including culture, recreation and education; general government; health and 
sanitation; public safety; public housing and welfare; and economic and urban development. 

h) Fund Financial Statements 

The Municipality's FFS consist of: (l) the balance sheet - governmental funds, (2) the statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds, (3) the statement of net 
assets - proprietary fund, (4) the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets -
proprietary fund, and (5) the statement of cash flows - proprietary fund. These financial statements 
report the financial position, the results of operations and cash flows of the Municipality's 
governmental and proprietary funds, with an emphasis on the Municipality's major governmental and 
proprietary funds. 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Municipality, like most other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. Each fund is considered an independent fiscal entity accounted for within a set of self­
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabil ities, fund equity, revenue, and expenditures. Fund 
accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in 
demonstrating compliance with legal, financial and contractual provisions. All of the funds of the 
Municipality can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

1. Governmental funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for most of the services provided by the Municipality. 
These funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the GWFS. Un like GWFS, the focus of governmental funds in the FFS is directed to 
specific activities of the Municipality rather than the Municipality as a whole; therefore, 
governmental funds in FFS report the Municipality's operations in more detail than the GWFS. 

Governmental funds in FFS provide a detailed short-term view of the Municipality's finances that 
assist in determining whether there will be adequate financial resources available to meet the 
current needs of the Municipality, which is, evaluating the Municipality's near-term financing 
requirements. For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies its governmental 
funds within the following types: (I) general fund, (2) debt service fund, (3) special revenue 
funds, ( 4) capital projects funds and (5) permanent funds. 

8 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEAL TH OF P UERTO RICO 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Governmental funds FFS are prepared on an accounting basis that is significantly different from 
that used to prepare GWFS. In general, governmental funds FFS focus on near-tenn inflows and 
outflows of expendable financial resources, consequently, they measure and account for cash and 
other assets that can easily be converted to cash. For example, amounts reported on the balance 
sheet include capital assets within a very short period of time, but do not include capital assets 
such as land and buildings. Governmental fund liabilities generally include amounts that 
nonnally are going to be paid within a short period after the end of the fiscal year. The difference 
between a fund 's total assets and total liabilities is reported as the fund balance or deficit, and 
generally indicates the amount that can be used to finance the next fiscal year's activities. 
Likewise, the operating statement for governmental funds reports only those revenues and 
expenditures that were collected in cash or paid with cash, respectively, during the current fiscal 
year or very shortly after the end of the fiscal year. 

Because the focus of governmental funds FFS is narrower than that of the GWFS, it is useful to 
compare the fund infonnation presented for governmental funds with similar infonnation 
presented for governmental activities in the GWFS. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-tenn impact of the Municipality's near-tenn financial decisions. Both the governmental 
funds' balance sheet and the governmental funds' statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between 
governmental funds and the governmental activities reported in the government-wide financial 
statements. 

The Municipality has five major governmental funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate 
column in the balance sheet - governmental funds and the statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. The five major governmental funds are: (1) 
general fund, (2) debt service fund, (3) head start fund, (4) community development block grant 
fund, and (5) capital improvement bond fund. 

2. Proprietary fund 

The proprietary fund is a fund used to report the financial position, results of operation and cash 
flows of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049), is a housing development 
consisting of eighty-four (84) dwelling units located in Juana Diaz. The project is owned by the 
Municipality, but its operations are carried out by a private management agent unrelated to the 
Municipality. The housing development project of Villas <lei Parque has been designed to assist 
various segments of the general public in obtaining adequate and reasonable priced rental 
housing. The project operates under financing through the Section 8 New Construction and 
Substantial Rehabilitation Program of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
and the Section 515 Rural Rental Housing Loans Program of the U.S. Department of Agriculture. 
The purpose of Villas del Parque is to provide adequate housing to low-income residents of the 
Municipality. 

The activities of Villas del Parque have been reported as a proprietary fund in the accompanying 
basic financial statements since GAAP pennits the use of enterprise funds to report any activity 
for which a fee is charged to external users of goods or services, regardless of whether the 
government intends to fu lly recover the cost of the goods or services provided. Thus, it is 
common to use proprietary fund reporting to account for services where the government intends 
to recover only a portion of its costs through fees or user charges. 

9 



MUNICIPALITY OF J UANA DIAZ, 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

Management' s Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 2 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the GWFS, but in more detail. 

c) Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

The NBFS provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data 
provided in the GWFS and FFS. The NBFS can be found immediately fo llowing the basic financial 
statements. 

d) Other Supplementary Information 

The basic financia l statements are followed by a section of other supplementary information 
consisting of budgetary comparison schedule - general fund. 

This Space Has Been Intentionally Left Blank 
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MUNICIPALITY OF J UANA DiAZ, 

C OMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS O F GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Statement of Net Assets serves as an indicator of the Municipality's financial position at the end of 
the fiscal year. In the case of the Municipality of Juana Diaz, governmental activities assets exceeded 
total liabilities by $45,479,358 at the end of 2012, as compared with $45,736,852 at the end of the 
previous year. Business-type activities assets exceeded total liabilities by $8,402 at the end of 20 I 2, as 
compared with $56,205 at the end of the previous year. The following condensed Statement of Net 
Assets of the Primary Government shows on a comparative basis the most important components of the 
($257,494) decrease reflected in the governmental activities Net Assets figure, and the ($47,803) decrease 
reflected in the business-type activities Net Assets figure 

Assets: 

Current assets 
Non-current assets: 

Capital assets, net 

Other non-current assets 

Total assets 

l iabilities: 
Current liabilities, excluding 
long-term obligations 

Long-term obligations: 

Due within one year 

Due after one year 

Total liabilities 

Net assets (deficit): 

Invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Governmental activities 
June 30, 

2012 

$11 ,33 1. 768 

68.409.945 

105,676 

79,847,389 

3.951 ,691 

2.350.088 

28,066.252 

34,368,031 

47.761 ,107 

4,221 ,109 

(6,502,858) 

S45.4 79,358 

June 30, 
2011 

$15.420.487 

67.886,589 

113.705 

83,420.781 

5.279,114 

3.220.942 

29,183.873 

37,683,929 

48.422.522 

4,503,788 

(7, 189,458) 

$45, 736,852 

Business-n:l.!e activities 
June 30, 

2012 

$ 193, 170 

1.070,813 

1,263,983 

28, 188 

35,294 

1.192.099 

1,255,581 

( 156.580) 

164,982 

$ 8,402 

June 30, 
2011 

$ 184,956 

s 

1.155.509 

1.340,465 

26.496 

32,863 

1,224.901 

1,284.260 

( 102,255) 

158,460 

56.205 

June 30, 
2012 

$11 ,524,938 

69.480,758 

105,676 

81 , 111 ,372 

3.979,879 

2,385,382 

29.258,351 

35,623,612 

47.604,527 

4,386,091 

(6,502,858) 

$45,487,760 

Total 
June 30, 

2011 

$15,605,443 

69.042,098 

113,705 

84,761,246 

5,305,610 

3,253,805 

30,408,774 

38,968,189 

48,320,267 

4,662,248 

(7, 189,458) 

$45,793,057 

The Statement of Activities reflects that for fiscal year 2012, the net effect of the revenues derived from 
several programs plus current operating revenues, amounted to ($257,494) in governmental activities, and 
($47,803) in business-type activities. Approximately thirty nine percent (39%) of the Municipality's 
governmental activities total revenue came from taxes, while fifty six percent (56%) resulted from grants 
and contributions, including federal aid. ln the case of the business-type, approximately ninety two 
percent (92%) of total revenues resulted from federal grant. The Municipality's governmental and 
business-type activities expenses included items such as general government, urban and economic 
development, health and sanitation, public safety, public housing and welfare, culture, recreation and 
education, and interest o long term obligations. 

11 



- MUN ICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEAL TH OF P UERTO RICO 
Management' s Discussion and Analysis 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Approximately seventeen percent ( 17%) of total expenses resulted from general government, nventy four 
percent (24%) of total expenses resulted from urban and economic development, six percent (6%) of total 
expenses resulted from health and sanitation, six percent (6%) of total expenses resulted from public 
safety, seven percent (7%) of total expenses resulted from public housing and welfare, thirty six percent 
(36%) of total expenses resulted from culture, recreation and education, while four percent (4%) of total 
expenses resulted from interest on long tenn obligations. The fo llowing is a condensed presentation of the 
Municipality's results of operations as reported in the statement of activities for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2012 and 2011: 

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total 

June JO, June JO, June JO, June 30, June 30, June 30, 
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 

Program revenues: 

Program-specific operating grant~ and contributions $8,290. 133 $8.696,385 $407,365 $404.974 $8.697,498 $9.101.359 

Program-specific capital grants and contributions 2.845.782 2,999,504 2,845,782 2,999,504 

Charges for services 737.307 578,477 35,723 30,826 773,030 609,303 

Total program revenues 11.873.222 12.274.366 443.088 435.800 12.316,310 12,710 166 
General revenues: 

Property taxes 4,961.696 5.018,041 4,961,696 5.018,041 

Municipal license taxes 1.963.316 2,092,330 1.963.3 16 2,092,330 

Sales and use taxes 2,447.324 2.195.024 2.447.324 2.195,024 

Construction excise taxes 1,848,392 656,683 1,848,392 656,683 

Unrestricted grants and contributions 4,924,453 4.696.466 4,924,453 4,696,466 

Other general revenues (various sources) 897.648 1,007.811 1.096 2.653 898,744 1,010,464 

Total g~neral revenues 17,042 829 15,666,355 1,096 2.653 17,043.925 15,669,008 

Total revenues 28,916.05 1 27.94-0,721 444.184 438.453 29.360.235 28,379.174 
Program expenses: 

General government 4,9 13,923 5,970,71 0 
4.913,923 

5,970,7 10 

Urban and economic development 6.966.179 5,795,138 
6,966,179 

5,795.138 

Health and sanitation 1,825,681 2,885.800 
1.825,68 1 

2,885,800 

Public safety 1,865.472 1,979,228 
1.865.472 

1,979,228 

Public housing and welfare 2,160,584 2.294,577 ~91 ,987 ~77.541 
2.652,571 

2,772,118 

Culture, recreation and education 10,196,018 9,819,1 33 
10,196,018 

9,819,133 

Interest on long-term obligations 1,245.688 1,076,016 
1,245.688 

1,076,016 

Total expenses 29.173.5~5 29.820.602 491.987 477.541 29.665.532 30.298.143 

Net increase (decrease) in net assets (257.494) ( 1.879,881 ) (47,803) (39,088) (305,297) (1.918,969) 

Net assets, at beginning of fiscal year. as restattd -l5,736.852 47.616.733 56,205 95.293 45.793,057 47.712,026 

Net a~ts, at end of fiscal year $45,479,358 $45, 736,852 $ 8,402 $ 56.205 $45,487,760 $45,793,057 
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MUNICIPALITY OF J UANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEAL TH OF P UERTO RICO 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENT AL ACTIVITIES 

Analysis of Financial Position of Governmental Funds 

As discussed earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is 
useful in assessing the Municipality's compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Specifically, 
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the Municipality's net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality' s governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances amounting to $5,377,928, which represents a decrease of $3,517,986 when compared with 
the prior year. 

Fund balances at June 30, 2012 were restricted and committed for the following purposes: (I) for debt 
service payments ($2,405,289); 2) to pay for capital projects ($3 ,050,624); and 3) for other purposes 
($976,727). As of June 30, 2012, the General Fund, which is the main operating fund of the Municipality, 
reflected an unassigned fund deficit of ($1 ,054, 712). 

The following table presents the condensed financial position of governmental funds at June 30, 2012 and 
2011: 

Assets: 
Total assets - major governmental funds 

Total assets - other governmental funds 

Combined total assets 

Liabilities: 
Total liabilities - major governmental funds 

Total liabilities - other governmental funds 

Combined total liabilities 

Fund balances (deficits): 
Restricted, committed or assigned - major 

governmental funds 
Restricted, committed or assigned - other 

governmental funds 
Unassigned 

Combined total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

13 

2012 

$ 8,946,118 

1,999,751 

10,945,869 

4,426,432 

1, 141,509 

5,567,941 

5,574,398 

858,242 
(1,054,7 12) 

5,377,928 

$ I 0,945,869 

2011 

$ 13,649,964 
2,158,022 

15,807,986 

5,803,808 

1,108,264 

6,912,072 

8,554,568 

1,049,758 
(708,412) 

8,895,914 

$ 15,807,986 



MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAz, 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

Analysis of Financial Position of Proprietary Fund 

At June 30, 2012, the total assets of proprietary fund amounted to $1 ,263,983, which consisted principally 
of: (I) restricted cash in commercial banks of $176,863, and; (2) capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation of$1,070,813. 

At June 30, 2012, the total liabilities of the proprietary fund amounted to $1,255,581, which consisted 
principally of mortgage notes payable of$1,227,393. 

The total restricted net assets of proprietary fund amounted to $8,402 at June 30, 2012, which are 
restricted for the operations of federally funded programs. The fol lowing table presents a summary of the 
financial position of the proprietary fund (PF) at June 30, 2012 and 20 I I: 

Assets: 
Total current assets 
Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Total current liabilities 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

Restricted for federal funded program 

Total restricted net assets 

BUDGETARY IDGHLIGHTS 

a) General Fund 

2012 

$ 193,170 

1,070,813 

$ 

1,263,983 

63,482 

I, 192,099 

1,255,581 

(156,580) 
164,982 

8,402 

2011 

$ 184,956 
1,155,509 

1,340,465 

59,359 

l ,224,901 

1,284,260 

(I 02,255) 

158,460 

$ 56,205 

The original and the final budget of the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 
amounted to $15,632,783. Over the course of the fiscal year, the Municipality revised the GF' s 
budget in order to include increases and decreases in expenditures. The laws and regulations of the 
Commonwealth mandate a balanced budget. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF J UANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEALTH OF P UERTO RICO 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The total actual revenues (budgetary basis) of the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2012 were $15,750,533, which is one percent(!%), or $117,750 more than the budgeted revenues. 
In addition, the total actual expenditures and other financing sources (budgetary basis) of the general 
fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 were $15,096,502, which is three percent (3%), or 
$536,28 l less than the budgeted expenditures. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

a) Capital Assets 

The Municipality has invested $99,348,252 in capital assets used in governmental activities, which 
have an accumulated depreciation and amortization of$30,938,307 at June 30, 2012. The net capital 
assets of governmental activities increased during the current fiscal year by $523,356, due to the 
current fiscal year' s capital additions ($3 ,918,250), which were partially offset by the depreciation 
and amortization expense ($3,394,894) for the same period. 

The capital additions made to capital assets during the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 2 (including 
construction in progress reclassification) were the following: 

Construction in progress 
Buildings, structures and improvements 
Infrastructure 
Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtu res 
Licensed vehicles 

Other capital additions for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2012 

b) Debt Administration 

$ 3,279,078 
83,732 

156,203 
399,237 

$ 3,91 8,250 

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal 
bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit and taxing power of each municipality 
may be pledged. The applicable law also requires that in order for a Municipality to be able to issue 
additional general obligation bonds and notes, such Municipality must have sufficient "payment capacity" 
as defined in Act No. 64. Such Act establishes that a Municipality has sufficient "payment capacity" to 
incur additional general obligation debt if its deposits in the Redemption Funds and the annual amounts 
collected with respect to such Municipal ity's Sales and Use Tax and Special Additional Tax (as defined 
below), as projected by GOB, will be sufficient to service to maturity the Municipality's outstanding 
general obligation debt and the additional proposed general obligation debt. 

15 



-

-

MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAz, 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The Municipality is required under prevailing applicable law to levy a Special Additional Tax and a Sales 
and Use Tax in such amounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal 
bonds and notes. In addition, principal of and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds and 
notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the issuance of general obligation bonds issued 
by the Municipality constitute a first lien on the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues. Accordingly, the 
Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be available to make debt service payments on general 
obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax and the Sales and Use 
Tax levied by the Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Redemption 
Funds, are not sufficient to cover such debt service. In the particular case of the Municipality of Juana 
Diaz, it has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pay debt service on general obligation debt of 
the Municipality. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal and state grants to 
carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have been very 
predictable with increases of approximately five percent, but for the fiscal year 2012-2013, the property 
tax and subsidies from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's General Fund and contributions from the 
Traditional and Electronic Lottery sponsored by said Government were slightly increased. Federal and 
State grant revenues may vary if new grants are available, but the revenue can be also predictable. Those 
factors were considered when preparing the Municipality's budget for the fiscal year 2012-2013. 

FINAL COMMENTS 

The Municipality of Juana Diaz is an autonomous governmental entity whose powers and authority vested 
on its Executive and Legislative Branches are specifically established in the Municipal Autonomous Act 
approved in August 1991. By virtue of such powers, it provides a wide range of services to its 
constituents which includes, among others, public works, education, public safety, public housing, health, 
community development, recreation, waste disposal, welfare and others. The Municipality's principal 
sources of revenues are derived from property taxes, sales taxes, municipal license taxes, subsidies from 
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's General Fund and contributions from the Traditional and Electronic 
Lottery sponsored by said Government. 

Since the Municipality is significantly dependent on the intergovernmental grants and contributions 
received from the government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and from property tax advances 
received from CRLM, the municipality could suffer a significant financial burden for certain scheduled 
intergovernmental revenues that could not be collected during the fiscal year 2012-2013, and accordingly, 
management is continuously evaluating alternatives for the permanent financing of the operations of the 
general fund and the Municipality. 

In order to achieve its budget control and cost reduction objectives, management is currently trying to 
manage the Municipality within its cash and budget constraints, including the periodic review and update 
of its cash flows projections, actual vs. budget comparisons for budget adjustments as needed, and the 
monitoring of the execution of the collections. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The success of the foregoing plans and strategies to reduce the general fund 's accumulated deficit, to 
improve the cash flows and liquidity of the Municipality and to achieve excess revenues over 
expenditures in the general fund of the Municipality cannot be assured, as it is significantly dependent 
upon events and circumstances which outcome cannot presently be determined. However, management is 
committed to undertake whatever actions may be necessary to prevent operating deficiencies in the future, 
but without affecting its fiduciary duty with its citizens regarding services and city improvements. 

REQUEST FOR INFORJ.'1A TION 

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer, customers, 
investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the 
Municipality's accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial 
information, contact the Municipality's Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 1409, Juana Diaz, PR 00769, 
or call (787) 837-2185. 
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cmmONWEATH OF Pt:ERTO RICO 
'll':"llCIPALITY OF .JL\~A DIAZ 

Statement of Net Assets 
June 30. 2012 

Governmental Business-type 
activities activities Total 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash in commercial banks $ I, 777,885 $ 176,863 $ 1,954,748 
Cash in fiscal agent 7.165.241 7,165.241 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts: 

Propeny taxes 128,773 128.773 
Intergovernmental 705.798 705,798 
Sales tax 238.345 238.345 
Interest 9.750 9.750 
Other 160,536 12,774 173,310 

Real estate held for sale I, 145,440 1,145,440 
Other current assets 3,533 3,533 

Total current assets 11 ,33 1,768 193.1 70 11.524.938 

llloncurrent assets: 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 

amortization of$30.938,307 and $2.829,592 for 
governmental and business-type activities, respectively 68,409,945 1.070.813 69,480.758 

Deferred charges, net of accumulated amortization of$83,002 105.676 105.676 
Total noncurrent assets 68.515.621 1,070,813 69,586,434 

Total assets $ 79,847,389 $ 1,263,983 $ 81,111 ,372 

Current Liabilities (due within one year): 
Accounts payable $ 1,053,800 28,188 $ 1,081,988 
Intergovernmental payables 442,303 442,303 
Accrued interest payable on long-tem1 debt 443,326 443,326 
Accrued christmas bonuses of employees 187,274 187,274 
Deferred revenues 1.824,988 1,824,988 
Current portion oflong-terrn obligations: 

Bonds payable 1.118,000 1.118,000 
Notes payable 782,088 35,294 8 I 7,382 
Compensated Absences 450,000 450.000 

Total current liabilities 6.301,779 63.482 6,365,261 

Noncurrent liabilities (due in more than one year): 
Bonds payable 20,887,000 20,887,000 
Notes payable 5,285,868 1.192,099 6,477,967 
Compensated Absences l.893,384 l.893,384 

Total current liabilities 28.066.252 . 1.192,099 29.258!351 
Total liabilities $ 34.368,031 $ 1,255,581 $ 35.623,612 

Nd assets (liabilities): 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt s 47.761, 107 s (156.580) $ 47,604,527 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 3.362,289 3.362.289 
Other specified purposes 858,820 164,982 1,023,802 

Unrestricted net liabilities ~6.502,858) (6,502.858) 
Total net assets $ 45,479.358 s 8.402 s 45.487,760 

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral pan of this statement. 
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Functions/programs 

Govtrnmental activities : 
General government 
Urban and economic development 
Health and sanitation 
Public safety 
Public housing and welfare 
Culture, recreation and education 

Interest on long-term obligation 
Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Public housing and welfare, 
including interests on long 
tenn obligation ofS 89,327 

Total business-type activities 

Expenses 

$ 4,9 13,923 
6,966.179 
1,825.681 
1,865,472 
2. 160,584 

10,196.018 
1.245.688 

$ 29.173.545 

$ 491.987 
$ 49 1.987 

C0\1:\10'.'iWE.-\TH OF Pl1ERTO RICO 
\l liNICIPALITY Of .IL\NA DIAZ 

Statement of Activities 

Charges for 
services 

17,325 

488,097 
75.534 

1.060 
155.29 1 

737.307 

35.723 
35.723 

June 30. 2012 

Pro2ram Revenues 
Operating Capital 
grants and grants and 

contributions contributions 

67.668 
47,751 2,779,100 

47,763 66,682 
1,724,146 
6.402.805 

8.290.133 2,845,782 

407.365 
407.365 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes 
Municipal license taxes 
Sales taxes 
Construction excise taxes 

Total taxes 
Grants and contributions. not restricted to specific programs 
Interests on deposits 
Miscellaneous 

Total general revenues 
Net changes in net assets 
Net assets at beginn ing of the year 

Net assets at the end of the year 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Assets 

Go\'ernmental Business-type 

$ 

activities activities Total 

(4.828,930) $ (4,828,930) 
(4, 139,328) (4, 139.328) 
( 1.337,584) ( 1,337,584) 
( 1,675,493) ( 1,675,493) 

(435,378) (435,378) 
(3.637.922) (3,637,922) 
( 1.245,688) ----- ___ (>.;;l,,;;;;l.;..;.4.:;,.5."'"68""8;.L.) 

(17.300,323) ===== $ (17.300,323) 

4,961,696 
1.963,316 
2.447,324 
1,848,392 

11,220,728 
4,924,453 

199,874 
697.774 

17.042.829 
(257,494) 

45.736.852 
45,479,358 $ 

(48,899) --~(4_8.._,8_99...._) 

( 48,899) ====( 4=8=,8=99==) 

4,961 ,696 
1,963,3 16 
2,447,324 
1,848.392 

11,220,728 
4,924,453 

336 200,210 
760 698.534 

1,096 17,043,925 
(47,803) (305,297) 
56,205 45 793.057 

8,402 $ 45,487,760 

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
~-IU'.'iIC IPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 

June 30. 2012 

~IAJOR fl'~DS 

Capital Other Total 
Debt Service Head Stan CDBG lmpro,·ement Nonmajor Governmental 

General Fund Fund Fund Fund Bond Fund Funds Funds 
ASSETS 

Cash in commercial banks s 428.755 s $ 2,583 s 4.7 10 s 578 $ 1.341.259 s 1.777,885 
Cash in fiscal agent 118.485 3,603.8 I 0 3,224,445 218,501 7,165,241 
Account receivable. net of 
doubtful accounts: 

Propeny taxes 128. 773 128,773 
Sales tax 165.31 3 73.032 238,345 
Interest 9.750 9.750 
Other 157,1 78 3,358 160,536 

Due from other funds 605.395 154, 146 759.541 
Due from governmental entities 86.983 144,325 192.003 282.487 705.798 

Total assets s 1.571.859 s 3.805.615 s 146,908 s 196,713 s 3.225,023 $ 1.999.751 $ 10.945,869 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 484.695 122.783 147.632 157,399 141.291 1,053.800 
Intergovernmental 442,303 442.303 
Due to other funds 320 24,125 49.081 17,000 669.01 5 759,541 
Deferred revenue 1.580.768 331.203 1,911.971 
Matured bonds due and payable 957.000 957.000 
Matured interests due and payable 443.326 443,326 

Total liabilities 2.508.086 1.400.326 146.908 196.713 174.399 1.141.509 5,567.941 

FUND BALANCE 
Fund balance: 

Restricted 118.485 V05.289 3,050.624 378,224 5.952.622 
Commined 480,01 8 480,018 
Unassigned ( 1.054. 712) ~1.054,7122 

Total fund balances (deficit) (936.227! 2.405.289 3,050,624 858,242 5,377.928 
TOTAL LIABILITIES ANO 
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) $ 1.571.859 $ 3.805.6 15 $ 146,908 $ 196.713 $ 3,225.023 $ 1,999.751 S I 0, 945.869 

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CO,t\IONWEALTU Of PUERTO RICO 

'llfNICIPALITY Of Jl' ANA DL~Z 
Statement of Revenues. Expcndirures and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Go•emmental Funds 
Year Ended June 30. 2012 

\lAJOR ff:\ DS 
Capital Other Total 

Debt Se!\ ice Head Stan lmpro>cmen1 Noruna1or Governmental 
General Fund Fund Fund CDBG Fund Bond Fund Funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Propcny ta.xes s 3.939.374 s 1.022.322 s s s s s 4,961,696 
Municipal license 1.963.316 1.963.3 16 
ConslTUction e,xcise ta.'<eS 1.8-18,392 1,848.392 
Sales tax 1.n1.241 720.083 2,447.324 
Charges of service 557,403 179.904 737,307 

ln1ergovernmen1al grams and con1ribu1ions: 
Federal government 6,347,805 2.964.572 1,688,360 11,000.737 
Stare govemmem 5.155.027 135,178 5,290,205 

lnves1men1 earnings 198.440 1.167 41 226 199,874 
Miscellaneous 489,911 207.863 691.n4 

Total Revenues 15.879.104 1.743.572 6,347,805 2.964.6 13 2.211.531 29,146.625 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 4.738.131 1.542 97,319 4,836,992 
Urban and economic de•elopment 5,256.211 660.342 153,453 6,070,006 
Heallh and sanitation 1.649,946 161.393 1,811,339 
Public safery 1,652.6 16 114.445 1,767,061 
Public housing and welfare 236.616 222.983 1,700,985 2,160,584 
Culture. recreation and education 1.469.919 6,347,805 119,850 7.937,574 

Debt service: 
Principal 1.168.173 1.110.000 100.000 2.378,173 
Interest 16.435 928.013 301,240 1.245,688 

Capital outlays 95.678 1.680,048 2.760.866 55,602 4.592.194 
To1al Expenditures 16.283,725 2.038.013 6,347.805 2.964,613 2.762,408 2.403.047 32,799,611 
Revenues over (under) expenditures (404.621) (294.441) (2. 762.408) (191.516) (3.652.986) 

OTHER FINANCING sot;Rc.Es (USES) 
Transfer in from olher funds 
Trans fer out to other funds 
Proceeds from debt issuance 135.000 135,000 

Total Other Financing Sources (uses) 135.000 135.000 

NET CHANGE Jl'i ffND BAL\NCES (DEFICITS) (404.621) (294.441) (2.627.408) ( 191.516) (3,517.986) 

FUND BAL\NCE (DEFICIT) AT BEGINNll'iG - OF YEAR (531,606~ 2.699.730 5.678.032 1.049,758 8,895.914 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) AT END OF YEAR s (936.227) s 2.405.289 s s - s 3.050.624 s 858.242 s 5.377.928 

t'1~~w"j/ 

The accompanying notes 10 the basic financial statements are an in1egral pan of 1his statement 
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CO,IMONWEAL TH OF P ERTO RICO 
'lli.'.\ICIPALITY OF J UA.'.\A DIAZ 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmemal Funds 
and the Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Fund 

to the Statement of et Assets 
June 30. 2012 

The amounts of governmental and business-type activities reported in the statement of net 
assets are different to the amounts reported in the balance sheet - governmental funds and the 
statement of net assets - proprietary fund, respectively, for the following reasons: 

Total fund balance and fund net assets reported in the balance sheet - governmental funds and 
the statement of net assets - proprietary fund, respectively. 

Add (Deduct): 

Capital asset held for sale reported in governmental activities are not considered available 
financial resources at fiscal year-end, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 
This is the carrying amount of capital asset held for sale at June 30, 2012. 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not considered available financial 
resources at fiscal year-end, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. This is 
the carrying amount of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of 
$30,938,307 at June 30, 2012. 

Certain deferred revenues in the governmental funds are recognized as revenues in the 
statement of activities. This is the deferred revenues (earned and unavailable revenues) for 
revenue streams that are measurable but not available at June 30, 2012 (intergovernmental 
grants and contributions). 

Debt issued by the Municipality has associated costs (deferred charges) that are paid from 
current available financial resources in the governmental funds. However. these costs are 
deferred in the statement of net assets and reported net of accumulated amortization of 
$83,002 at June 30, 2012. 

The following liabilities are not due (mature) in the current fiscal year, therefore, arc not 
reported in the governmental funds at June 30, 20 12: 

Bonds payable 

Notes payable 

Compensated absences 

Accrued christmas bonuses 

Net assets - governmental and business-type activities, as reported in statement of 
net assets s 

Governmental 
activities 

$ 5,377,928 

1,145,440 

68,409,945 

86,983 

105,676 

(21,048,000) 

(6.067,956) 

(2,343,384) 

(187,274) 

45,479,358 

Business-type 
activities Total 

8,402 $ 5,386,330 

1,145,440 

68,409,945 

86,983 

105,676 

(21 ,048,000) 

(6,067,956) 

(2,343,384) 

( 187,274) 

8,402 s 45,487,760 

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part to this statement. 
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CO.\IMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
.\l l iNICIPALITY OF J UANA DIAZ 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances (Deficits) - Governmental Funds and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 

and Changes in Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Fund to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The amounts of governmental and business-type act1v1t1es reported in the GWFS 
statement of activities and the statements of revenues, expenditures\expenses and 
changes in fund balances\net assets - governmental funds and proprietary fund, are 
different for the following reasons: 

Total net change in fund balances\net assets reported in the statement of revenues, 
expenditures\expenses and changes in fund balances\net assets - governmental funds and 

Governmental 
activities 

Busrness-type 
activities Total 

proprietary fund $ (3,5 17,986) (47,803) $ (3,565,789) 

Add (Deduct): 

Certain revenue streams recorded in the statement of activities do not necessarily 
provide current financial resources, therefore, sometimes are deferred in the 
governmental funds. This is the net change in deferred revenues of the revenue items, 
that are measurable but not available at fiscal year end. 

Goverrnental funds report investments in real estate held for sale as expenditures. 
However in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is capitalized until sold. 
This the amount invested in real estate held for sale. 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the statement 
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as 
depreciation and amortization expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays 
expenditures ($3,918,250) exceeded depreciation and amortization expense 
($3,394,894) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 

Repayment of principal of long-term obligations is reported as an expenditure in the 
governmental funds, however, the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the 
statement of net assets. 

Amortization of deferred charges reported in the statement of activities does not 
require the use of current financial resources, therefore, are not reported as 
expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Governmental funds report bond issuance deferred charges as expenditures. However 
in the GWFS statement of ac.tiv ities the cost of those deferred charges is allocated over 
the related long term debt term as amortization expense. 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental 
funds. This is the net change in liabilities of the related expenses\expenditures 
accounts. 

Issuance of long term debt provide current tinancial resources to governmental tunds, 
but issuing such debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 

Net increase (decrease) in net assets, as reported in statement of activities $ 

(4,983) (4,983) 

673,944 673,944 

523,356 523,356 

2,378, J 73 2,378,173 

(1 1,485) ( 11 ,485) 

3,456 3,456 

( I 66,969) (166,969) 

( 135.000) (135,000) 

(257,494) (47,803) =$===(=30=5 ..... 29=7=) 

The accompanying notes to the ba~ic financial statements are an integral part to this statement. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

Statement of Net Assets 

Proprietary Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund 

Restricted Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash in commercial banks (including cash 

for operations of $70,210) 

Tenants accounts receivable 

Account receivable from HUD 

Prepaid insurance 

Other assets 

Total current assets 

Non-current assets: 
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated 

depreciation of $2,829,592 

Non-depreciable capital assets 

Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and fund net assets 

Current liabilities (due within one year): 
Accounts payables and accrued liabilities 

Current portion of mortgage notes payable 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities, excluding current portion 
Mortgage notes payable - due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

Fund net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for other purposes 

Total restricted net assets 

Villas del Parque 
FmHA Project 

No.63-033-0690660049 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

176,863 
6,004 

6,770 

1,208 

2,325 

193,170 

974,584 

96,229 

1,070,813 

1,263,983 

28,188 

35,294 

63,482 

1,192,099 

1,255,581 

(156,580) 

164,982 

8,402 

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
Proprietary Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Operating revenues: 
[ntergovemmental grants and contributions - tenants assistance payments 
from U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Charge for services - rental income from tenants 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
General and administrative 
Utilities 

Maintenance 
Taxes and insurance 
Interest on mortgage notes payable 
Depreciation of capital assets 

Total operating expenses 
Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating income (expense): 
Interest on deposits 

Total nonoperating income (expense) 

Net increase (decrease) in restricted fund net assets 

Net assets at beginning of fiscal year 
Net assets at end of fiscal year 

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Fund 

$ 

$ 

Villa del Parque FmHA 
Project No. 63-033-

0690660049 

407,365 
35,723 

760 
443,848 

160,373 
21,047 
66,669 
33,335 

89,327 
121,236 
491,987 
(48,139) 

336 

336 

(47,803) 

56,205 
8,402 

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
:VIUNICIPALITY OF J UANA DIAZ 
Statement of Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Fund 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Receipts from rent 

Interest received 
Payments to suppliers and employees 

Payment of mortgage interests 
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest deposited on replacement reserve 

Withdrawals from repacement reserve 

Increase in other reserves 

Deposit to repacement reserve 

Acquisition of capital assets 
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Principal payments on mortgage 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending 

Displayed on statement of net assets as: 
Cash in commercial banks 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided (used) by operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 

net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 
Increase (Decrease) in: 

HUD accounts receivable 

Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued payroll taxes 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Villa del Parque fmHA 
Project No. 63-033-

0690660049 

442,101 

336 

(283,007) 
(89,327) 

70,103 

(287) 

31 ,030 

(5,747) 

(19,620) 

(36,540) 

(31,164) 

(30,371) 

(30,371) 

8,568 

61 ,642 
70,210 

70,210 

( 47,803) 

121,236 

(5,123) 

209 

1,584 
117,906 

70,103 

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Municipality of Juana Diaz, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Municipality), is a local 
municipal government constituted in 1798 in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The Municipality 
has full legislative, fiscal and all other governmental powers and responsibilities expressly assigned 
by Law No. 81 of August 30, 1991, as amended, known as Autonomous Municipalities Act of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (Act No. 81 ). The Municipality is one of seventy-eight municipal 
governments legally separated from the state government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the 
Commonwealth). 

The Constitution of the Commonwealth provides for the separation of powers of the executive, 
legislative and judicial branches of the Commonwealth and the municipalities. However, the 
Municipality's governmental system consists of executive and legislative branches only. A Mayor, 
elected every four years by the citizens, exercises the executive power of the Municipality. The 
legislative power of the Municipality is exercised by the Municipal Legislature, whose members are 
also elected every four years. The judiciary power is exercised by the General Justice Court System 
of the Commonwealth, which has jurisdiction over the Municipality. 

The Municipality assumes either partial or full responsibility for providing services to its citizens 
related to public housing, welfare, public safety, health, sanitation, education, culture, recreation, 
urban development, economic development, and many other fiscal, general and administrative 
services. 

a) Financial Reporting Model 

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial position of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major governmental and proprietary funds, and the 
aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Municipality at June 30, 2012, in conformity with 
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as 
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). In addition, the 
accompanying basic financial statements present the changes in the financial position (results of 
operations) of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major governmental 
and proprietary funds, and the aggregate remaining fund information for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2012 in conformity with GAAP. Furthermore, the basic financial statements referred to 
above present the cash flows of the business-type activities (proprietary fund) for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2012 in conformity with GAAP. 

According to the financial reporting model established by GASB Statement No. 34, Basic 
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local 
Governments (GASB No. 34), the required basic financial statement presentation applicable to 
the Municipality is composed of the following elements: (I) government-wide financial 
statements (GWFS), (2) governmental and proprietary fund financial statements (FFS), (3) notes 
to basic financial statements, and (4) required supplementary information (RSI). 
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MUNICIPALITY OF J UANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2012 

RSI consists of: (l) a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and (2) a budgetary 
comparison schedule - general fund. RSI is unaudited supplementary infonnation required by 
GAAP presented along with, but separate from, the Municipality's basic financial statements. 

MD&A is a narrative report that introduces the accompanying basic financial statements and 
provides an analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2012, based on the Municipality's knowledge of the transactions, events and conditions 
reflected in the basic financial statements. The MD&A also highlights certain key fiscal policies 
that control the Municipality's operations. 

In addition to the required financial reporting requirements referred to above, the accompanying 
basic financial statements are accompanied by additional supplementary infonnation consisting of 
a budgetary comparison schedule - general fund and the notes to the budgetary comparison 
schedule - general fund, which have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the accompanying basic financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2012. 

b) Financial Reporting Entity 

The accompanying basic financial statements include all departments, agencies and municipal 
operational units that are under the legal and administrative control of the Mayor, and whose 
financia l resources are under the legal custody and control of the Municipality's Director of 
Finance, as prescribed by Act No. 81. 

The accompanying basic financial statements include the financial statements of Villas del Parque 
(FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049), an operational unit and a business-type activity 
(proprietary fund) of the Municipality which single audit report reflect total assets, liabilities, net 
assets, revenues and expenses of $1,263,983, $1,255,581 , $8,402, $443,848 and $491,987 
(inc luding depreciation expenses of $121 ,236), respectively, as of and for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2012. The financial position, results of operations and cash flows of Villas del Parque as 
of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 are reported in the accompanying statement of net 
assets - proprietary fund, the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets -
proprietary fund, and the statement of cash flows - proprietary fund, respectively. 

Villas del Parque is a housing development project consisting of eighty-four (84) dwelling units 
located in Juana Diaz. The project is owned by the Municipality, but its operations are carried 
out by a private management agent unrelated to the Municipality. The housing development 
project of Villas del Parque has been designed to assist various segments of the general public in 
obtaining adequate and reasonable priced rental housing. The project operates under financing 
through the Section 8 New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation Program of the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development and the Section 515 Rural Rental Housing 
Loans Program of the U.S. Department of Agriculture. The purpose of Villas del Parque is to 
provide adequate housing to low-income residents of the Municipality. Separate audited financial 
statements of Villas del Parque can be obtained directly from the management agent's offices at 
Professional Center Building, Suite 302, San Juan, Puerto Rico 00927. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

On July I, 2005, the Municipality adopted the prov1s10ns of GASB Statement No. 39, 
Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units - an Amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 14 (GASB No. 39). GASB No. 39 states that certain organizations for which a 
primary government is not financially accountable nevertheless warrant inclusion as part of the 
financial reporting entity because of the nature and significance of their relationship with the 
primary government, including their ongoing financial support of the primary government and its 
other component units. 

According to GASB No. 39, a legally separate, tax-exempt organization should be reported as a 
discretely presented component unit of a reporting entity if all of the following criteria are met: 

• The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or 
almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component units, or 
its constituents. 

• The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to 
otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate 
organization. 

• The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific 
primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise 
access, are significant to that primary government. 

In addition, GASB No. 39 states that other organizations should be evaluated as potential 
component units if they are closely related to, or financially integrated with, the primary 
government. Such types of entities may be presented as either blended or discretely presented 
component units, depending upon how they meet the criteria for each specified in GASB No. 14. 
The Municipality's management has concluded that, based on the aforementioned criteria, there 
are no legally separate entities or organizations that should be reported as component units of the 
Municipality as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 

c) Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The accompanying GWFS are composed of: (I) the statement of net assets and (2) the statement 
of activities. These financial statements report information of all governmental and business-type 
nonfiduciary activities of the Municipality as a whole. These statements are aimed at presenting a 
broad overview of the Municipality's finances by reporting its financial position and results of 
operations using methods that are similar to those used by most private businesses. 

The focus of GWFS is on the operational accountability of the Municipality as a single economic 
unit and not on compliance with budgets, regulatory requirements or on the use of available or 
currently expendable financial resources (referred to as fiscal accountability). Operational 
accountability is the Municipality's responsibility to report to the extent to which it has met its 
operating objectives efficiently and effectively, using all resources available for that purpose. It 
focuses on the Municipality's principal operating objective, which is to provide services to its 
citizens. 

30 



MUNICIPA LITY OF J UANA DIAZ, 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO R ICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The accompanying statement of net assets provides short-tenn and long-tenn infonnation about 
the Municipality's financial position by presenting all of the Municipality's assets and liabilities, 
with the difference between these two items reported as ·'net assets" (equity) and/or net liabilities 
(accumulated deficit). This statement assists management in assessing the level of services that 
can be provided by the Municipality in the future and its ability to meet its obligations as they 
become due. In addition, this statement reports the extent to which the Municipality has invested 
in capital assets and discloses legal and contractual restrictions on resources. 

Net assets (liabilities) are classified in the accompanying statement of net assets within the 
following three categories: 

• Invested in capita l assets, net of related debt - This net asset category consists of capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by the outstanding balances 
of bonds payable, notes payable and other debts that are attributed to the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. For the purposes of detennining the outstanding 
debt attributed to capital assets, the total long-tenn debt related to the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of capital assets has been reduced by any related unspent debt 
proceeds and any related unamortized debt issuance costs. 

• Restricted net assets - This net asset category consists of net resources restricted by external 
parties (such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments, 
etc.), or net assets for which constraints are imposed by constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. Enabling legislation consists of legislation that authorizes the Municipality to 
assess, levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource 
providers). Enabling legislation establishes restrictions if it includes a legally enforceable 
requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the 
legislation. 

• Unrestricted net liabilities - This category consists of the excess of liabilities over related 
assets (accumulated deficit) that are neither externally nor legally restricted, neither invested 
in capital assets. However, assets reported within unrestricted net liabilities often are 
designated to indicate that management does not consider them to be available for general 
operations. Assets reported within this category often have constraints that are imposed by 
management but can be removed or modified. When both restricted and unrestricted 
resources are available for use, it is the Municipality' s policy to generally use restricted 
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Municipality's 
policy to generally use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are 
needed. 

The accompanying statement of activities presents the Municipality's results of operations by 
showing, how the Municipality's net assets or liabilities changed during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2012, using a net (expense) revenue format. This statement presents the cost of each 
function/program as well as the extent to which each of the Municipality's functions, programs or 
other services either contributes to or draws from the Municipality's general revenues (such as 
property taxes, municipal license taxes, construction excise taxes, etc.). 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

A function/program describes a group of activities that are aimed at accomplishing a major 
service or regulatory responsibility. The functions/programs reported in the accompanying basic 
financial statements are: ( 1) general government, (2) urban and economic development, (3) public 
safety, ( 4) health and sanitation, (5) culture, recreation and education and (6) public housing and 
welfare. The governmental operations of the Municipality's departments and operational units 
are classified within the following functions/programs in the accompanying basic financial 
statements: 

General government: 
Municipal legislature 
Mayor's office 
Department of finance 
Department of human resources 
Department of municipal secretary 
Department of internal audit 
Office of communications 
Office of administrative services 
Department of purchases 

Urban and economic development: 
Department of public works 
Department of planning and development 
Federal programs office 

Public safety: 
Department of emergency management - civil defense 
Department of municipal police 

Health and sanitation: 
Department of recycling services 
Municipal enterprises 
Department of health 

Culture, recreation and education: 
Department of sports and recreation 
Department of art, culture and tourism 
Head Start program office 

Public housing and welfare: 
Department of citizen affairs 
Section 8 program office 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which program revenues offset direct 
expenses of a given function/program or segments. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function, segment or operational unit. This statement reports revenues 
in three broad categories: ( 1) program revenues, (2) general revenues and (3) special items. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

• Program revenues - These revenues are generated directly from a program itself or may 
come from parties outside the Municipality's taxpayers or citizens. In the statement of 
activities, program revenues reduce the costs (expenses) of the function/program to arrive at: 
(l) the net cost of the function/program that must be financed from the Municipality's general 
revenues or (2) the net program revenue that contributes to the Municipality's general 
revenues. The accompanying statement of activities separately reports the following 
categories of program revenues: 

• Charges for services - These revenues generally consist of exchange or exchange-like 
transactions involving charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly 
benefit from the goods, services or privileges provided, or are otherwise directly affected by 
the services. These revenues include fees charged for specific services, rent, charges for 
licenses and permits, and fines and forfeitures, among others. 

• Program-specific operating and capital grants and contributions - These revenues 
consist of transactions that are either mandatory or voluntary non-exchange transactions with 
other governments, organizations, or individuals that restrict the resources for use in a 
particular program. Operating grants and contributions consist of resources that are required 
to be used to finance the costs of operating a specific program or can be used either for 
operating or capital purposes of a specific program. Capital grants and contributions consist 
of revenues or resources that are restricted for capital purposes - to purchase, construct or 
renovate capital assets associated with a specific program. Restricted operating and capital 
grants and contributions are program revenues because they are specifically attributable to a 
program and reduce the net expense of that program to the Municipality. They are reported 
net of estimated uncollectible amounts. 

General revenues are the default category for revenues. It includes all revenues and gains that do 
not meet the definition of program revenues. Property taxes, municipal license taxes, construction 
excise taxes and sales and use taxes are reported as general revenues. All other nontax revenues 
(including unrestricted interest on deposits, grants and contributions not restricted for specific 
programs and miscellaneous revenues) that do not meet the definition of program revenues are 
classified as general revenues. Resources that are dedicated internally by the Municipality are 
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. All general revenues are reported 
net of estimated uncollectible amounts, which are recorded as reduction of revenues rather than as 
expenses. 

Special items consist of revenues arising from significant transactions or other events within the 
control of management that are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. 

Extraordinary items consist of revenues arising from significant transactions or other events that 
are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF P UERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The general government function/program reported in the accompanying statement of activities 
includes expenses that are, in essence, indirect or costs of other functions/programs of the 
Municipality. Even though some of these costs have been charged to certain funds in the FFS as 
indirect cost allocations permitted under some federal programs, the Municipality has reported 
these indirect costs as direct expenses of the general government function. Accordingly, the 
Municipality generally does not allocate general government (indirect) costs to other functions. 

The effects of all inter-fund governmental activities (revenues, expenditures and other financing 
sources/uses among governmental funds) have been removed from the accompanying statements 
of net assets and activities. 

The Municipality classifies the most significant portion of its activities as governmental activities 
in the accompanying GWFS. These are activities generally financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues and other non-exchange revenues that can be used to support the 
Municipality's programs or services. These governmental activities are a lso generally reported in 
the FFS. On the other hand, the operations of Villas del Parque are reported as business-type 
activities in the accompanying GWFS. These activities are primarily financed from grants and 
contributions and charges for services. These business-type activities are also reported in the 
FFS. 

The Municipality has no fiduciary activities, which are those in which the Municipality would be 
holding or managing net assets for specific individuals or other external parties in accordance 
with trust agreements or other custodial arrangements. 

The Municipality has operations and activities that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises, where the costs of providing goods or services to the general 
public (expenses, including depreciation) is financed primarily through user charges; and where 
the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses 
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management 
control, accountability, or other purposes. 

d) Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity consisting of a self-balancing set of accounts used to 
record assets, liabilities and residual equities, deficits or balances, and changes therein, which are 
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certai·n objectives in 
accordance with GAAP and/or special regulations, restrictions or limitations. 

The accompanying FFS are composed of: (I) the balance sheet - governmental funds, (2) the 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances (deficits) - governmenta l 
funds, (3) the statement of net assets - proprietary fund, ( 4) the statement of revenues, expenses 
and changes in fund net assets - proprietary fund, and (5) the statement of cash flows -
proprietary fund. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF P UERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

These financial statements report the financial pos1tton and results operations of the 
Municipality's governmental and proprietary funds and fund types by presenting sources, uses 
and balances of current and non-current fi nancial resources. Some of these financial statements 
have a budgetary orientation and focus primarily on: (I) the Municipality' s major governmental 
fund and fund types, as defined below, (2) the fiscal accountability and (3) the individual parts of 
the Municipality's government. Fiscal accountability represents the Municipality' s responsibility 
to justify that its actions in the current fiscal year have complied with public decisions concerning 
the raising and spending of public moneys in the short term (generally one fiscal year). 

The accompanying FFS segregate governmental funds, proprietary funds and fund types 
according to their intended purpose and are used in demonstrating compliance with legal, 
financial and contractual provisions. The minimum number of governmental funds and fund 
types is maintained consistent with legal and self-imposed managerial requirements established 
by the Municipality. For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies its 
governmental and proprietary funds within the fo llowing categories: 

• 

• 

General fund - The general fund is the Municipality's main operating fund and a major 
governmental fund, as defined below, used to account for all financial resources and 
governmental activities not accounted for and reported in another fund. It is presumed that 
the Municipality's governmental activities have been reported in the general fund except for 
transactions for which one of the following compelling reasons has required the use of 
another fund: (I) legal requirements, (2) GAAP requirements or (3) the demands of sound 
financ ial administration requiring the use of a governmental fund other than the general fund. 

Debt service f und - The debt service fund is a major governmental fund, as defined below, 
used by the Municipality to account for all financial resources that are restricted, committed, 
or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest; for (I) bonds payable for which debt 
service payments are legally mandated to be accounted for in a debt service fund and/or (2) 
bonds payable or any general long-term debt for which the Municipality is being 
accumulating financial resources in advance to pay principal and interest payments maturing 
in future years. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the financial activity accounted 
for in the debt service fund was specifically related to bonds payable. 

The outstanding balance of general long-term obligations for which debt service payments do 
not involve the advance accumulation of resources (such as notes payable) are only accounted 
for in the accompanying statement of net assets. The debt service payments of such debts, as 
applicable, are generally accounted for as debt service - principal and debt service - interest 
expenditures in the general fund, except for certain notes payable to HUD, which are 
accounted for in the community development block grant fund. 
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• Special revenue funds - The special revenue funds are major and non-major governmental 
funds, as defined below, used by the Municipality to account for the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes 
other than debt service and capital projects. The uses and limitations of each special 
revenue fund are specified by municipal ordinances or federal and state statutes. However, 
resources restricted to expenditure for purposes nonnally financed from the general fund are 
reported in the Municipality's general fund provided that all applicable legal requirements are 
appropriately satisfied. In this case, a special revenue fund to account for such kind of 
transactions will be used only if legally mandated. 

• Capital projects funds - Capital projects funds are major and non-major governmental funds, 
as defined below, used to account for all financial resources that are restricted, committed, or 
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays. Significant capital outlays financed from 
proceeds of general obligation, public improvement or special obligation bonds are accounted 
for also in the capital projects funds. 

• 

The use of the capital projects funds has been reserved only for major capital acquisitions, 
construction or improvement activities that would distort financial resources trend data if not 
reported separately from the other Municipality's operating activities. The routine purchases 
of minor capitalizable assets (such as furniture, office equipment, vehicles and other minor 
capital assets or improvements) have been reported in the governmental fund from which 
financial resources were used for the payment. 

Proprietary fund - Proprietary fund is a fund used to report the financial position, results of 
operation and cash flows of Villas de! Parque (FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049). 
which are activities for which the intent of management is to recover, partially through user 
charges for services (rent) and mostly through federal grants, the cost of low-income housing 
services to the general public. 

The activities of Villas del Parque have been reported as a proprietary fund since GAAP 
pennits the use of enterprise funds to report any activity for which a fee is charged to external 
users of goods or services, regardless of whether the government intends to fully recover the 
cost of the goods or services provided. Thus, it is common to use proprietary fund reporting 
to account for services where the government intends to recover only a portion of its costs 
through fees or user charges (GASB No. 34, paragraph 67): 

As required by GASB No. 34, the proprietary fund of the Municipality applies all 
pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) and its 
predecessor bodies, such as the Accounting Principles Board (APB) and the Committee on 
Accounting Procedure, issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided those 
pronouncements do not conflict with or contradict the standards of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. However, the Municipality has elected to continue following 
more recent F ASB guidance, provided it neither contl icts nor contradicts GASB 
pronouncements. 
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The focus of the FFS is on major governmental funds, proprietary funds and fund types, which 
generally represent the Municipality's most important funds. Accordingly, the Municipality is 
required to segregate governmental funds, proprietary funds and fund types between major and 
non-major categories within the FFS. Major individual governmental and proprietary funds and 
fund types are reported individually as separate columns in the FFS, while data from all non­
major governmental and proprietary funds are aggregated into a single column, regardless of fund 
type. 

By definition, the Municipality's general fund is always considered a major governmental fund 
for financial reporting purposes. In addition, any other governmental fund is classified as a major 
governmental fund in the FFS if its total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures of that 
individual governmental fund are at least I 0 percent of the corresponding element total (assets, 
liabilities, revenues or expenditures) for all governmental funds. In addition, the same element 
that meets the 10 percent criterion must be at least 5 percent of the corresponding element total 
for all governmental and enterprise (proprietary) funds combined. For the purposes of applying 
the aforementioned major fund criteria, no eliminations of inter-fund balances have been made. 
Total revenues for these purposes means all revenues, including operating and non-operating 
revenues (net of allowances for uncollectible accounts), except for other financing sources. Total 
expenditures\expenses for these purposes mean all expenditures\expenses, including operating 
and non-operating expenditures\expenses, except for other financing uses. 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Municipality's major governmental funds reported in 
the accompanying FFS are: ( 1) the general fund, (2) the debt service fund, (3) the head start fund, 
(4) the community development block grant fund and (5) the capital improvement bond fund. In 
addition, Villas del Parque has been reported separately from governmental funds as the only 
proprietary fund of the Municipality. 

The head start fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the receipts and disbursements 
of the head start program grant administered by the Administration for the Integral Care and 
Development of Children of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, as a pass-through entity of the 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. 

The community development block grant fund is a major capital projects fund used to account for 
financial resources that are assigned by the US Housing and Urban Development Agency and by 
the PR Office of the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs principally for use in the community 
development projects. 

The capital improvement bond fund is a major capital projects fund used to account for proceeds 
of general obligation, public improvement or special obligation bonds. These proceeds are used 
for the acquisition, construction or improvement of major capital facilities and other assets. 

The accompanying FFS are accompanied by other statements and schedules required by GAAP: 
(I) the reconciliation of the balance sheet - governmental funds to the statement of net assets, and 
(2) the reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds to the statement of activities. 
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e) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund - The accompanying G WFS and 
proprietary fund are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Subject to the additional rules and limitations detailed below, revenues 
(including interest on deposits and rent) are generally recorded when earned and expenses are 
generally recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange­
like transactions are generally recorded when the exchange takes place. In exchange transactions, 
each party to the transaction receives and gives up essentially equal values. An exchange-like 
transaction is one in which there is an identifiable exchange and the values exchanged, though 
related, may not be quite equal. Nevertheless, the exchange characteristics of the exchange-like 
transaction are strong enough to justify treating it as an exchange for accounting purposes 
(examples include certain charges for services and miscellaneous revenues, which are recorded as 
revenues when collected because they are generally not measurable until actually received). 

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions are 
recorded using the criteria set forth by GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting/or Non-exchange Transactions (GASB No. 33). GASB No. 33 established accounting 
and reporting standards for non-exchange transactions involving cash and financial or capital 
resources (for example, most taxes, grants and private donations). In a non-exchange transaction, 
the Municipality gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in 
return. This is different from an exchange transaction, in which each party receives and gives up 
essentially equal values. According to GASB No. 33, the Municipality groups its non-exchange 
transactions into the following four classes in the accompanying basic financial statements: (a) 
derived tax revenues, (b) imposed non-exchange revenues, ( c) government mandated non­
exchange transactions, and (d) voluntary non-exchange transactions. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Revenue 
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expenses. The 
major operating revenue of the Municipality's enterprise fund is from rent charges collected 
principally from a Section 8 New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation Program housing 
assistance grant agreement with U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

In the case of derived tax revenue transactions, which result from assessments the Municipality 
places on exchange transactions, receivables and revenues are recorded when the underlying 
exchange has occurred. 
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In the case of imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as property taxes and municipal 
license taxes), which result from assessments made by the Municipality on nongovernmental 
entities, including individuals, other than assessments on exchange transactions, receivables are 
generally recorded in the period when an enforceable legal claim has arisen. Property taxes and 
municipal license are generally recorded as revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) 
in the fiscal year when resources are required to be used or the first fiscal year that the use of the 
resources is pennitted. 

Government-mandated non-exchange transactions (such as grants and contributions) result when 
a government at one level (such as the federal or state government) provides resources to the 
Mun icipality and the provider government requires the Municipality to use those resources for a 
specific purpose or purposes established in the provider's enabling legislation. In these type of 
transactions, receivables and revenues are generally recorded when all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. For the majority of grants, the Municipality must expend 
resources on the specific purpose or project before the provider reimburses any amounts. 
Revenue is, therefore, generally recognized as qualifying reimbursable expenditures are incurred. 

Voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and certain grants and entitlements) 
result from legislative or contractual agreements, other than exchanges, willingly entered into by 
two or more parties. In these types of transactions, receivables and revenues are generally 
accounted for in the same manner as government-mandated non-exchange transactions discussed 
above. Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchange transactions are recorded when it is 
probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of loss is reasonably estimable. 

Receipts of any type of revenue sources collected in advance for use in the following fiscal year 
are recorded as unearned revenues. 

According to GASB No. 34, all general capital assets and the unmatured long-tenn liabilities are 
recorded only in the accompanying statement of net assets and the statement of net assets -
proprietary fund. The measurement focus and the basis of accounting used in the accompanying 
GWFS and the proprietary fund differ significantly from the measurement focus and basis of 
accounting used in the preparation of the accompanying governmental fund financial statements. 
Therefore, the accompanying governmental fund financial statements include reconciliations, as 
detailed in the accompanying table of contents, to better identify the relationship between the 
GWFS and the governmental fund financial statements. 

Governmental fund financial statements - The accompanying governmental fund financial 
statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus (flow of current 
financial resources) and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, the 
accompanying statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances (deficits) -
governmental funds, reports changes in the amount of financial resources available in the near 
future as a result of transactions and events of the fiscal year reported. Therefore, revenues are 
generally recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered 
to be available when they are collectible within the current fiscal year or soon enough thereafter 
to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For this purpose, the Municipality considers most 
revenues to be available if collected generally within 90 days after June 30, 2012, except for 
property taxes for which the availability period is 60 days. 
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Revenue sources not meeting this availability criterion or collected in advance are recorded as 
deferred (earned and unavailable) revenues at June 30, 2012. 

The principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include property taxes, municipal 
license taxes, sales and use taxes, construction excise taxes, intergovernmental grants and 
contributions, interest on deposits and charges for services. These principal revenue sources meet 
both measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying governmental fund financial 
statements, except for amounts recorded as deferred (earned and unavailable) revenues. 

In a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria discussed 
previously, all revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange 
and exchange-like transactions are also generally recorded when the exchange takes place. 
Accordingly, certain charges for services and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues 
when collected because they are generally not measurable until actually received. 

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions are 
recorded in a similar manner to the GWFS, using the previously discussed criteria set forth by 
GASB No. 33 for non-exchange transactions, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria 
discussed above. Accordingly, property tax and municipal license tax receivables are also 
generally recorded in the fiscal year when an enforceable legal claim has arisen while property 
tax and municipal license tax revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) are also 
generally recorded in the fiscal year when resources are required to be used or the first fiscal year 
that the use of the resources is pennitted. Receivables and revenues from federal and state grants 
and contributions, donations and entitlements are also generally recorded when all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met (generally, as qualifying reimbursable 
expenditures are incurred for expenditure-driven grants). 

Interest on deposits is recorded when earned only if collected within 90 days after the fiscal year­
end since these revenues would be considered both measurable and available. 

Pursuant to the prov isions of GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of 
Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements (GASBl No. 
6), in the absence of an explicit requirement (i.e., the absence of an applicable modification, 
discussed below) the Municipality generally accrues a governmental fund liability and an 
expenditure (including salaries, professional services, supplies, utilities, etc.) in the period in 
which the government incurs the liability, to the extent that these liabilities are normally expected 
to be liquidated with current available financial resources. GASBI No. 6 modified the 
recognition criteria for certain expenditures and liabilities reported under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting prior to GASB No. 34, and clarified a number of situations in which the 
Municipality should distinguish between governmental fund liabilities and general Jong-term 
liabilities. Therefore, the accompanying balance sheet - governmental funds generally reflects 
assets that will be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities. Long-term assets (except for 
accounts receivables and inter-fund advances) and those assets that will not be converted into 
cash to satisfy current liabilities are generally not accounted for in the accompanying balance 
sheet - governmental funds. At the same time, long-term liabilities (generally, those unmatured 
that will not require the use of current financial resources to pay them) are not accounted for in 
the accompanying balance sheet - governmental funds. 
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Modifications to the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with GASBI No. 6 include: 

• Principal and interest on bonds payable are recorded when they mature (when payment is 
due), except for principal and interest due on July I, 2012, which have been recorded as 
governmental fund liabilities at June 30, 2012, which is the date when resources are available 
in the debt service fund (generally, June 30). 

• Notes payable, obligations under capital leases, compensated absences, and amounts subject 
to accrued claims and judgments under litigation are recorded only when they mature (when 
payment is due). 

• Certain accrued liabilities not due and payable or not normally expected to be liquidated with 
current available and expendable financial resources are recorded in the accompanying 
statement of net assets. Such liabilities are recorded in the governmental funds when they 
mature. 

• Executory purchase orders and contracts are recorded as assignments of fund balance in the 
governmental funds FFS. 

The measurement focus of the governmental funds financial statements is on decreases of net 
financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and 
are recorded when the related governmental fund liability is incurred. Allocation of costs, such as 
depreciation and amortization, are recorded in the accompanying statement of activities and the 
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets, but are not recorded in the 
accompanying governmental fund financial statements. 

j) Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

Budgetary Control 

According to Law No. 81, the Mayor and its Administrative Cabinet prepare annual budgets each 
fiscal year for the Municipality's general fund and debt service fund. Such legally adopted 
budgets are based on expected expenditures by program and estimated resources by source. The 
annual budgets are developed using elements of performance-based program budgeting and zero­
based budgeting, and include estimates of revenues and other resources for the ensuing fiscal year 
under laws and regulations existing at the time the budgets are prepared. 

The Mayor must submit, for each fiscal year commencing on July I, an annual budgetary 
resolution project (the Project) to the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs of the Commonwealth 
(the Commissioner) and the Municipal Legislature no later than the immediately preceding May 
31. The Commissioner preliminarily verifies that the Project complies with all the applicable 
laws and regulations and may provide comments and suggestions to the Mayor on or before the 
immediately preceding June 15. 
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The Municipal Legislature has I 0 business days, up to the immediately preceding June 13, to 
discuss and approve the Project with modifications. The Municipal Legislature may amend the 
budgets submitted by the Mayor but may not increase any items so far to cause a deficit without 
imposing taxes or identifying other sources of revenue to cover such deficit. After the Municipal 
Legislature modifies and preliminarily approves the Project, the modified Project is sent back to 
the Mayor for his approval or rejection within six (6) days. The Mayor may decrease or eliminate 
any line item but may not increase or insert any new line item in the budgets. The Mayor may 
also veto the budgets in their entirety and return it to the Municipal Legislature with his 
objections. If the Mayor rejects the Project, the Municipal Legislature will have up to eight (8) 
days to adopt or reject the recommendations or objections of the Mayor. The approved Project is 
sent again to the Mayor, which then would have three (3) days to sign and approve it. 

If the budgets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines referred to above, the annual 
budgets for the preceding fiscal year, as approved by the Legislature and the Mayor, are 
automatically renewed for the ensuing fiscal year until the Municipal Legislature and the Mayor 
approve new budgets. This regulation permits the Municipality to continue doing payments for its 
operations and other purposes until the new budgets are approved. 

The annual budgets may be updated for any estimate revisions as well as fiscal year-end 
encumbrances, and may include any additional information requested by the Municipal 
Legislature. The Mayor may request subsequent amendments to the approved budgets, which are 
subject to the approval of the Municipal Legislature. 

The Municipality's Department of Finance has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary 
spending control is maintained. For day-to-day management control purposes, expenditures plus 
encumbrances may not exceed budgeted amounts at the expenditure-type level of each cost center 
(activity within a program within a fund). The Mayor may transfer unencumbered appropriations 
within programs within funds. The Municipal Legislature may transfer amounts among programs 
within and among funds. 

The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed 
appropriation) is at the function/program level (general government, urban and economic 
development, public safety, health and sanitation, culture, recreation and education, and public 
housing and welfare) within a fund. 

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the appropriations made for any fiscal 
year shall not exceed the total revenue, including available surplus, estimated for said fiscal year 
unless the imposition of taxes sufficient to cover said appropriations is provided. 

Budgetary Accounting 

The Municipality's annual budgets are prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of 
accounting, which is not in accordance with GAAP. 

According to the budgetary basis of accounting, revenue is generally recorded when cash is 
received. Short-term and long-term borrowings may be used to finance budgetary excess of 
expenditures over revenues. 
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The Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to record the fu ll amount of purchase orders, 
contracts and other commitments of appropriated resources as deductions from the appropriation 
prior to actual expenditure. In the governmental funds, encumbrance accounting is a significant 
aspect of budgetary control. Accordingly, expenditures are generally recorded when the related 
expenditure is incurred or encumbered. Available appropriations and encumbrances are 
established to lapse one fiscal year after the end of the fiscal year. Amounts required to settle 
claims and judgments against the Municipality, and certain other liabilities, are not recognized 
until they are encumbered or otherwise processed for payment. Unencumbered appropriations 
and encumbrances lapse at fiscal year-end. Other appropriations, mainly capital projects 
appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that 
an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made available for current 
spending. 

The accompanying budgetary comparison schedule - general fund provide infonnation about the 
general fund original budget, its amendments, and the actual results of operations of such major 
governmental fund under the budgetary basis of accounting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
20 I 2. Further details of the Municipality's budgetary control at the legal level may be obtained 
from the Budgetary Liquidation Report for the fisca l year ended June 30, 2012. 

Because accounting principles applied for the purposes of the developing data on a budgetary 
basis differ significantly from those used to present the governmental fund financial statements in 
conformity with GAAP, a reconciliation of the differences between the general fund budgetary 
bases and GAAP actual amounts are presented at the bottom of the budgetary comparison 
schedule. 

g) Deposits 

The Municipality's deposits are composed of: ( l) cash on hand, (2) demand deposits in 
commercial banks, (3) demand deposits in the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico 
(fiscal agent) and ( 4) cash equivalents in commercial banks. 

The Municipality follows the practice of pooling cash. The balance in the pooled cash account is 
available to meet current operating requirements and any unrestricted excess, if any, is invested in 
certificates of deposit with commercial banks. Any deficiency in the pooled cash account is 
assumed by the general fund and covered through future budgetary appropriations. At June 30, 
2012, the cash available in the pooled cash account amounted to $1 , 192,0 14, which has been 
recorded within major and non-major governmental funds. 

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, public funds deposited by the 
Municipality in commercial banks must be fully collateralized for the amounts deposited in 
excess of the federal depository insurance generally provided by the Federal Deposits Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC). All securities pledged as collateral are held by agents designated by the 
Commonwealth 's Secretary of the Treasury, but not in the Municipality's name. 
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Cash in fiscal agent in the general fund, amounting to $118,485 consists principally of unspent 
proceeds of bonds for payment of the statutory expenditures. Cash in fiscal agent in the debt 
service fund consists of cash related to property tax and sales and use tax collections amounting 
to $3 ,603,810 which are restricted for the payment of the Municipality's debt service of bonds 
payable, as required by law. Cash in fiscal agent in the capital improvement bond fund and other 
governmental funds, amounting to $3,224,445 and $218,501, respectively, consists principally of 
unspent proceeds of bonds and federal public assistance grants funds, which are restricted for the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of major capital assets. 

Cash in commercial banks of the head start fund, amounting to $2,583, represents the balance of a 
non-interest bearing account restricted to finance the operations of this federal financially assisted 
program. Cash in commercial banks of the community development block grant fund, amounting 
to $4, 710, represents the balance of a non-interest bearing account restricted to finance the 
operations of this federal financially assisted program. Cash in commercial banks for other 
governmental funds, amounting to $1 ,341,259, represents the balance of interest bearing and non­
interest bearing accounts restricted to finance the operations of certain federal, state and local 
funded programs. 

Cash in commercial banks of Villas del Parque (proprietary fund), amounting to $176,863, 
represents the balance of interest and non-interest bearing accounts restricted to finance the 
project operations. Villas de! Parque is required to set amounts for the replacement of property 
and other project expenditures, as approved by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development. Accordingly, the restricted cash balances of Villas del Parque include a 
replacement reserve of $75,389, a cash balance for operations of $70,210, tenants' security 
deposits of $7, 767 and a cash balance reserved for taxes and insurance of $23,497. 

h) Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consist of all revenues earned but not collected at June 30, 2012. These 
accounts receivables are stated net of estimated reserved for doubtful accounts, which are 
determined based upon past collection experience, historical trends, current economic conditions 
and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. 

Activities among governmental funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e. the 
current portion of inter-fund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current 
portion of inter-fund loans), as applicable. All other outstanding balances between funds are 
reported as "due to/from other funds." 
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i) Real Estate Held for Sale 

j) 

Real estate's held for sale of $1,145,440 in the accompanying statement of net assets consist of 
purchased and redeveloped foreclosed and abandoned homes and residential properties with the 
resources granted by the Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP), a component of the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). This real estate's held for sale is carried at the 
lower of the estimated fair value or historical cost. Subsequent declines in the value of real 
estate's available for sale are charged to expense. 

Other Current Assets 

Other current assets in the accompanying statement of net assets and the balance sheet -
governmental funds consist principally of prepaid costs, which are capitalized rather that charged 
to operations. 

k) Deferred Charges 

Deferred charges in the accompanying statement of net assets consist of debt issue costs 
associated with the issuance of bond and notes. Deferred charges are reported net of accumulated 
amortization. Deferred charges are amortized over the term of the related debt using the straight­
line method. In the governmental funds FFS, bond issuance costs are recorded in the current 
period as expenditures, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received. 

I) Capital Assets 

Capital assets used in governmental and business-type act1V1t1es include land and land 
improvements, buildings, structures and building improvements, machinery and equipment 
(including equipment held under capital leases), furniture and fixtures, licensed vehicles, 
construction in progress, and infrastructure. These assets are capitalized and reported in the 
accompanying statement of net assets and the statement of net assets - proprietary fund. 
Infrastructure assets are generally stationary in nature and include roads, bridges, streets and 
sidewalks, drainage systems and other similar assets. 

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality defines capital assets as assets with an 
individual cost basis of $100 or more at the date of acquisition, construction or improvement, and 
with useful lives extending beyond one year. All assets with individual costs under$ I 00 or with 
useful lives not exceeding one year, are charged directly to expense in the government-wide 
statement of activities and the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets. In 
the governmental funds, all capital assets are recorded as capital outlays (expenditures), while all 
assets with individual costs under $100 are recorded as expenditures in the corresponding 
funct ion/program identified with the asset. 

In the statement of net assets and the statement of net assets - proprietary fund, all capital assets 
are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost was unavailable, except for donated 
capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated 
historical costs based on deflated current costs were used to value a portion of the infrastructure 
constructed or acquired prior to June 30, 2003 and certain lands, buildings, structures and 
bui lding improvements. 
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The method used to deflate the current costs with an approximate price index was used only in 
the case of certain items for which the historical cost documentation was not available. 

Actual historical costs were used to value the infrastructure acquired or constructed after June 30, 
2003 as well as, construction in progress, machinery and equipment and licensed vehicles 
acquired prior or after such date. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in the statement of net assets as 
projects are constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to 
the asset or materially extend capital asset lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation and amortization expense is recorded only in the government-wide statement of 
activities. However, there is no depreciation or amortization recorded for land and construction 
in progress. Depreciable capital assets are generally depreciated or amortized over their 
estimated useful lives under the straight- line method, except for machinery and equipment held 
under capital leases which is depreciated over the shorter of its estimated useful life or the lease 
term. The estimated useful lives of major capital asset categories are: 

Land improvements 
Buildings, structures and building improvements 
Infrastructure 
Motor vehicles 
Furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment, 

excluding those held under capital leases 
Office equipment held under capital leases 

Years 
20 

30 to 50 
20 to 50 

5 

5 to 20 
3 to 5 

Depreciation and amortization expense of capital assets is recorded as a direct expense of the 
function/program specifically identified with the asset. Depreciation and amortization of 
infrastructure is not allocated to various functions/programs but reported as direct expenses of the 
urban and economic development function. 

m) Deferred Revenues 

In the governmental fund financial statements, deferred revenue arises when one of the following 
situations occur: 

• Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for revenue 
recognition in the current period (reported as "earned and unavailable revenue" in the 
accompanying balance sheet-governmental funds). As previously discussed, available is 
defined as due (or past due) at June 30, 2012 and collected within 90 days ( 60 days for 
property taxes) thereafter to pay obligations due at June 30. In subsequent periods, when 
both criteria (measurable and available) are met, the liability for deferred revenue is removed 
and revenue is recognized. 

46 



-

-

MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

• The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (reported as 
"imearned revenue " in the accompanying balance sheet-governmental funds). ln subsequent 
periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, the liability for deferred revenue is 
removed and revenue is recognized. 

Unearned revenues at the government-wide and the proprietary fund levels arise only when the 
Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (reported as "unearned 
revenue" in the accompanying statement of net assets). No "earned and unavailable revenue" is 
accounted for in the accompanying statement of net assets nor the statement of net assets -
proprietary fund. 

n) Compensated Absences 

The liability for compensated absences recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets is 
limited to leave that: (I) is attributable to services already rendered on or before June 30, 2012 
and (2) is not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Municipality and the 
employee (such as illness). Compensated absences that relate to future services or are contingent 
on a specific event outside the control of the employer or the employee are accounted for in the 
period when those services are rendered or those events take place. 

The liability for compensated absences includes salary-related costs, which are directly and 
incrementally related to the amount of salary paid to the employee (such as employer's share of 
social security taxes and medicare taxes). 

The vacation policy of the Municipality provides for the accumulation of regular vacations at a 
rate of 2.5 days per month (30 days per fiscal year) per employee. Employees accumulate regular 
sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month ( 18 days per fiscal year). Employees accumulate 
compensatory time at a rate of 1.5 times the overtime worked. All vacation and sick leave days 
accumulated by employees in excess of 30 days and 90 days, respectively, are paid to employees 
each fiscal year, if not consumed, as required by law. fn the case of compensatory time, the 
excess of 240 hours is paid to employees each fiscal year, if not consumed. 

Upon termination of employment, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated unpaid 
regular vacation leave at the current rate. In the case of regular sick leave, if the employee 
terminates his or her employment before reaching 10 years of services, such regular sick leave is 
not paid to the employee, if not consumed. In addition upon termination of employment, an 
employee does not receive compensation for compensatory time, if not consumed previously. 
After 10 years of services, any regular sick leave balance is paid to the employee. Accumulated 
vacation time is fully vested to the employee at any time. 

The liability for compensated absences is in the statement of net assets. A liability for 
compensated absences is reported in the governmental fund financial statements only when 
matured (when payment is due), for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirements. 
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o) Long-term Debt 

MUNICIPALITY OF J UANA DL.\Z, 
CO,IMONWEAL TH OF P ERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The long-term liabilities reported in the accompanying statements of net assets include the 
Municipality's bonds payable, notes payable, accrued compensated absences and accrued legal 
claims and judgments (if any). 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental resources is reported as liabilities in the 
accompanying statement of net assets. Principal and interest payments on bonds due on July 1, 
2012 have been recorded as governmental fund liabilities in the debt service fund at June 30, 
2012, when resources were available. In the governmental fund financial statements, the face 
amount of debt issued (gross debt proceeds) is reported as other financing sources when issued. 

In the governmental activities of the GWFS, debt issuance costs have been capitalized and 
reported as deferred charges, which are being amortized under the straight-line method over the 
respective lives of the debts. In the GFFS, such costs are recorded as expenditures as incurred. 

Non-interest bearing notes payable are accounted for under the provisions of Opinion No. 21, 
Interest on Receivables and Payables, issued by the Accounting Principles Board (APB No. 21 ). 
According to APB No. 21, the Municipality has recorded such notes at present value with an 
imputed interest rate that approximates the rate that would have been used, using the same terms 
and conditions, if it had been negotiated by an independent lender. In the accompanying 
statement of net assets, such notes payable are reported net of the applicable unamortized 
discount, which is the difference between the present value and the face amount of the notes. The 
discount is amortized over the life of the notes using the effective interest method. Amortization 
of the notes discount is recorded as part of interest expense in the statement of activities. In the 
GFFS, notes discount is recognized as other financing uses as incurred. 

p) Accounting/or Pension Costs 

For the purpose of applying the requirements of GAS B Statement No. 27, Accounting for 
Pensions by State and Local Government Employers (GASB No. 27), the state government of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the Employees' Retirement 
System of the Government of Puerto 

Rico and Its Instrumentalities (ERS) and System 2000, a multi-employer cost-sharing defined 
benefit pension plan and a hybrid defined contribution plan, respectively, in which the employees 
of the Municipality participate. The Municipality is considered a participant, and not a sponsor, of 
these retirement systems since the majority of the participants in the aforementioned pension trust 
funds are employees of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the basic financial statements of 
such retirement systems are part of the financial reporting entity of the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico. Accordingly, no portion of the net pension obligation (NPO) related to ERS has been 
allocated to the Municipality in the accompanying basic financial statements. The basic financial 
statements of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico report the total amount of the net pension 
obligation of ERS, including any amount that may correspond to the Municipality. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a multiple­
employer cost-sharing plan. Accordingly, pension costs recognized in the accompanying basic 
financial statements are equal to the statutorily required contributions, with a liability recorded for 
any unpaid required contributions. 

q) Risk Management 

The Municipality carries commercial insurance covering casualty, theft, tort claims and other 
losses. Insurance policies are negotiated by the Municipality. The Municipality pays the insurance 
premiums each fiscal year through monthly equal payments deducted from the Municipality's 
gross property tax collections made by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center ("CRIM'', by its 
Spanish acronym), a governmental entity responsible for billing and collecting property taxes on 
behalf of al I municipalities of Puerto Rico. 

The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by automobile 
accidents. This insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents Compensation 
Administration (ACAA, by its Spanish acronym), a component unit of the Commonwealth. This 
insurance is compulsory for all licensed vehicles used on public roads and highways in Puerto 
Rico. The annual premium applicable at June 30, 2012 is $35 per licensed motor vehicle, which 
is paid directly to ACAA. 

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance coverage through the State Insurance 
Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth. This insurance covers 
workers against injuries, disability or death because of work or employment-related accidents, or 
because of illness suffered as a consequence of their employment. Workers' compensation 
insurance premiums are also paid through monthly deductions made by CRIM from the 
Municipality's gross property tax collections. 

The Municipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability, and drivers' 
insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance programs administered by the 
Commonwealth's Department of Labor and Human Resources (DOL). These insurance programs 
cover workers against unemployment and provide supplementary insurance coverage for 
temporary disability, or death because of work or employment-related accidents or because of 
illness suffered as a consequence of their employment. Unemployment compensation, non­
occupational disability and drivers' insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost 
reimbursement basis. 

The Municipality also obtains medical insurance coverage from health insurance companies for 
its employees. Health insurance coverage and premium options are negotiated each year by the 
Municipality on behalf of the employees. The current insurance policies have not been cancelled 
or terminated at June 30, 2012. Premiums are paid on a monthly basis directly to the insurance 
company. In the past three years, the Municipality has not settled claims that exceeded insurance 
coverage. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

On July I, 2010, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund 
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions No. 54 (GASB No. 54). GASB No. 
54, which enhanced the usefulness of fund balance infonnation by providing clearer fund balance 
classifications that can be more consistently applied. 

Also, this statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy upon use of 
the resources reported in governmental funds. 

According GASB No. 54 provisions, the fund balances are reported in five categories: 

• Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are: a) not in spendable form or 
b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Due to the nature or form of the 
resources, they generally cannot be expected to be converted into cash or a spendable form. 

• Restricted - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by 
constitutional provisions, external resource providers (externally imposed by creditor or 
grantors), or through enabling legislation (that is, legislation that creates a new revenue 
source and restricts its use). Effectively, restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the 
consent of resource providers. 

• Committed - Represent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by fonnal action of the 
Municipal's highest level of decision making authority (Municipal Legislature through 
resolutions and ordinances) and can only be changed by a similar law, ordinance or 
resolution, no later than the end of fiscal year. 

• Assigned - Represent resources intended to be used by the Municipality for specific purposes 
but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed (generally executive 
orders approved by the Mayor). Intent can be expressed by the Municipal Legislature, the 
Mayor or by an official or body to which the Municipal Legislature delegates authority in 
confonnity with the Law No. 81 of August 30, 1991, as amended, known as Autonomous 
Municipalities Act of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (Act No. 81 ). In governmental funds 
other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not 
restricted or committed. 

• Unassigned - Represent the residual classification for the Municipality's general fund and 
includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, the 
unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending 
for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned. 

Negative fund balance amounts are assigned amounts reduced to the amount that will raise 
the fund balance to zero. Consequently, negative residual amounts is restricted, committed 
and assigned fund balance classifications have been reclassified to unassigned fund balances. 
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The Municipality reports resources constrained to stabilization as a specified purpose (restricted 
or committed fund balance in the general fund) only if: ( l) such resources meet the other criteria 
for rhose classifications, as described above and (2) the circumstances or conditions that signal 
the need for stabilization are identified in sufficient detail and are not expected to occur routinely. 

However, the Municipality has not entered into any stabilization-l ike arrangements, nor has set 
aside material financial resources for emergencies and has not establ ished formal minimum fund 
balance amounts as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts are available in multiple fund 
balance classifications, the Municipality uses restricted resources first, and then unrestricted 
resources. Within unrestricted resources, the Municipality generally spends committed resources 
first, followed by assigned resources, and then unassigned resources. 

At June 30, 2012, the accompanying fund financial statements reported fund balances as 
restricted, committed and unassigned. 

s) Inter-Jund Activities 

The Municipality has the following types of reciprocal and non-reciprocal inter-fund activities 
recorded among governmental funds in the accompanying FFS: 

• Inter-fund loans - Represent resources (assets) provided by one governmental fund to other 
governmental fund with a requirement and commitment for repayment (reimbursement), 
which are recorded as "due from" in the lender governmental fund and "due to" in the 
borrower governmental fund. Inter-fund receivables, which are not considered to be 
currently available financial resources, are reported as "advances ". For amounts not 
expected to be collected, inter-fund receivables/payables are reduced to their estimated 
realizable (settlement) value, and the portion of the inter-fund loan that is not expected to be 
repaid is reported as a "transfer-in" from the governmental fund that provided the loan. 

• Inter-fund transfers (transfers-in/( out)) - Represent flows of assets (permanent reallocation 
of financial resources among governmental funds) without equivalent flows of assets in 
return and without a requirement for repayment. Transfers are reported as ''other financing 
uses " in the governmental fund making transfers and as "other financing sources" in the 
governmental fund receiving transfers. 

• Inter-fund reimbursements - Represent repayments (reimbursements) from the 
governmental fund responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the governmental 
fund that initially paid for them. 

ln the FFS, inter-fund activity has not been eliminated, as permitted by GAAP. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 
COMMONWEAL TH OF P UERTO RICO 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The preparation of the accompanying basic financial statements in confonnity with GAAP 
requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the basic financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

u) Future Adoption of Accounting Pronouncements 

The GASB has issued the following standards that have effective dates after June 30, 2012: 

• GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession 
Arrangements (GASB No. 60). The objective of this Statement is co improve financial 
reporting by addressing issues related to service concession arrangements (SCAs), which are a 
type of public-private or public-public partnership. This Statement is effective for periods 
beginning after December 15, 2011. 

• GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus~n amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 34 (GASB No. 61). The objective of.this Statement is to improve 
financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity. The requirements of 
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and the related financial reporting 
requirements of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements~nd Management's 
Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. were amended to better meet user 
needs and to address reporting entity issues that have arisen since the issuance of those 
Statements. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 20 12. 

• GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and JACPA Pronouncements. The objective of 
this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB's authoritative literature certain accounting and 
financial reporting guidance that is included in the following pronouncements issued on or 
before November 30, 1989, wich does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements; 
I) Financial Accounting Standard Board (F ASB) Statements and interpretations, 2) 
Accounting Principles Board Opinions, 3) Accounting Research Bulletins of the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants' (AJCPA) Committee on Accounting Procedure. This 
Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. 

• GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which establishes guidance for reporting deferred 
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of 
financial position. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for 
periods beginning after December 15, 2011. 

• GASB Statement No. 65, Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities 
The objective of this Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that 
reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that 
were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or 
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. 
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The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning 
after December 15, 2012. 

• GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections-2012-an amendment ofGASB Statements No. 
10 and No. 62 (Issued 03112). The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting 
guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund 
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB 
and AlCPA Pronouncements. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. 

• GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans-an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 25 (Issued 06112). The objective of this Statement is to improve financial 
reporting by state and local governmental pension plans. This Statement results from a 
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial 
reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful info rmation, supporting 
assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. 
This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for 
De.fined Bene.fit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 
50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or 
equivalent arrangements (hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The 
requirements of Statements 25 and 50 remain applicable to pension plans that are not 
administered through trusts covered by the scope of this Statement and to defined contribution 
plans that provide postemployment benefits other than pensions. 

• GASB Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an amendment of 
GASE Statement No. 27 (Issued 06112). The primary objective of this Statement is to improve 
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also 
improves informat ion provided by state and local governmental employers about financial 
support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a 
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial 
reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting 
assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. 
This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. 

• GASB Statement No. 69 Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations 
(Issued 01113) This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related 
to government combinations and disposals of government operations. As used in this 
Statement, the term government combinations include a variety of transactions referred to as 
mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of operations. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for government combinations and disposals of government operations occurring in 
financial reporting periods beginning after December 15, 20 13, and should be applied on a 
prospective basis. 

Except for GASB Statement No. 63, the Municipality's management has concluded that the 
future adoption of these GAS B Statements will not have a significant impact on the financial 
statements. 
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The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in Puerto Rico and the 
Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GOB). Proceeds from all bonds and the funds 
related to certain federal grant awards are required by law to be held with GOB. 

On July I, 2004, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB No. 40), 
Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure, an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 3. This statement 
requires that state and local governments disclose essential risk infonnation about deposits and 
investments. The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (I) credit risk, (2) interest rate risk, 
(3) custodial credit risk, ( 4) foreign exchange exposure. 

• Credit risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not 
fulfill its obligations. In compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the 
Municipality has adopted, as its custodial credit risk policy, the Statement of Investment 
Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Accordingly, the 
Municipality is only allowed to invest its obligations of the Commonwealth, obligations of 
the United States of America, certificates of deposit, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances 
or in pools of obligations of the Municipalities of Puerto Rico, which are managed by GOB. 
According to the aforementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality is not allowed to 
invest in marketable securities or any other type of investments for which credit risk exposure 
may be significant. Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that the credit 
risk related to any possible loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the Municipality's 
deposits is considered low at June 30, 2012. 

• Interest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will 
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure to 
declines in fair values by: (I) not including debt investments in its investments portfolio at 
June 30, 2012, (2) limiting the weighted average maturity of its investments to periods of 
three months or less and (3) keeping most of its banks deposits in interest bearing accounts 
generating interest at prevailing market rates. At June 30, 2012, the interest rate risk 
associated with the Municipality' s cash and cash equivalent is considered low. 

• Custodial credit risk - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, the Municipality's deposits may not be recovered. Pursuant to the Statement of 
Investment Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the balances 
deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC), generally up to a maximum of $250,000 per depositor. In 
addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are fully 
collateralized for the amounts deposited in excess of the federal depository insurance. All 
securities pledged as collateral are held in the Municipality's name by the agents of the 
Commonwealth 's Secretary of Treasury. Deposits of GOB, amounting to $7, 165,241 at June 
30, 20 l 2, are uninsured and uncollateralized. However, no losses related to defaults by GOB 
on deposit transactions have been incurred by the Municipality through June 30, 2012. It is 
management's policy to only maintain deposits in banks affiliated to FDIC to minimize the 
custodial credit risk, except for GOB. Therefore, the Municipality's management has 
concluded that at June 30, 2012, the custodial credit risk associated with the Municipality' s 
cash and cash equivalents is considered low. 
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• Foreign exchange risk - This is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect 
the value of an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment 
guidelines, adopted by the Municipality, the Municipality is prevented from investing in 
foreign securities or any other types of investments for which foreign exchange risk exposure 
may be significant. Accordingly, management has concluded that the foreign exchange risk 
related to the Municipality's deposits is considered low at June 30, 2012. 

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2012, are classified in the accompanying balance sheet 
- governmental funds a follows: 

Capital 

~bl Head Improvement Other 
Genel'lll service start CDBG bond gonmmental 

Fund fund fund fund Fund funds Total 

Cash in commercial banks S 428,755 2.583 -1.710 578 U41,259 s 1,777,885 

Cash in GDB, as fiscal agenl 11 8,485 3.603.810 3.224..l-15 218,501 7, 165,241 
To1al carrying amounl of - --- ------ ------------- ----

deposits $ 547.240 3,603.810 2,583 4.710 3.225.023 1,559,760 s 8,943,126 

3. Municipal License Taxes 

The Municipality is authorized by Law No. 81 to impose and collect municipal license taxes to any 
natural or legal person having trade or business activities within the territory of Juana Diaz. This is a 
self-assessed tax generally based on the business volume of taxpayers, measured by gross revenues. 
The Municipality establishes the applicable tax rates. At June 30, 2012, the municipal license tax 
rates imposed by the Municipality were 1.50 percent for financial institutions and 0.50 percent for 
other types of taxpayers. Any taxpayers that have been granted with a partial tax exemption under 
any of the tax incentive acts of the Commonwealth ultimately pay municipal license taxes at reduced 
tax rates, generally between 60 percent and 90 percent under standard rates. 

Each taxpayer must assess the corresponding municipal license tax by declaring the volume of 
business through a tax return to be filed and due five (5) working days after April 15 of each year, 
based on the actual volume of business (revenues) generated in the preceding calendar year. 
Taxpayers with a sales volume of $3 million or more must include audited financial statements with 
their tax return filings. The tax can be paid by the taxpayer in two equal installments due on July 15 
and January 15, subsequent to the filing of the declaration before the due date ended five (5) working 
days after April 15 of each year. The first installment of the tax covers the six-month period ended 
December 31 , subsequent to the filing date of the declaration, while the second installment of the tax 
covers the six-month period ended June 30 of the subsequent calendar year. If a taxpayer elects to 
pay the tax in full on the filing date of the declaration (five (5) working days after April 15), a 5 
percent discount is granted automatically on the total tax amount due. 

Any municipal license taxes collected in advance (that is, pertaining to a future fiscal year) are 
recorded as unearned revenues in the GWFS and the general fund. Unearned municipal license tax 
revenues recorded in the accompanying GWFS and the general fund amounted to $1 ,493,785 at June 
30, 2012. Those unearned municipal license revenues collected in advance pertain to the general 
fund 's operating budget of the fiscal year 2012-2013, therefore, generally cannot be used to pay 
obligations of the fiscal year 2011 -20 12. 
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The Municipality is authorized by Law No. 117 of July 4, 2006, as amended by Law No. 80 of July 
29, 2007, to impose and collect sales and uses taxes of one point five ( 1.5) percent to substantially all 
products and services sold or provided within the territorial limits of the Municipality. The 
mentioned Laws establish the applicable tax rate. 

At June 30, 201 2, the municipal sales and uses tax rate imposed by the Municipality was 1.50, from 
which the Municipality collect one (I) percent, and .the Puerto Rico Secretary of the Treasury collect 
the remaining point five (.5) percent without including food and food ingredients as defined in 
Section 230l(a) of the Act No. 107, on behalfofthe Municipality. 

The point five (.5) percent collected by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department and belonging to the 
Municipality it is distributed through three separate funds: municipal development fund (up to .2%, 
at the discretion of the Municipality), municipal redemption fund (from .2% to .4%%, at the 
discretion of the Municipality) and municipal improvements fund (. l %). The Municipality has 
elected to restrict a portion of the sales tax amounting .4% for the payment of long-term debt and is 
recorded in the debt service fund. The remaining portion is recorded in the general fund since is 
available for general operating purposes. 

The tax collected by merchants during a given month is due and must be paid accompanied by a sales 
and use tax return to the Municipality and to the Puerto Rico Treasury Department on or before the 
10th day of the following month. 

The resources collected by the Municipality due to this tax assessment will be used in local activities 
like improvements in health services, improvements in the control and management of solid waste 
disposal and recycling programs, public improvements, improvements of public safety, and 
maintenance of all public facilities of the Municipality. 

The sales and use tax receivable is recognized as revenue when it becomes measurable and available 
base on actual collection during the 30 days following the fiscal year-end related to sales and use tax 
returns due before year end. 

Sales and use tax receivable in the general and debt service funds at June 30, 2012, of $165,313 and 
$73,032, respectively, represent actual collection during the 30 days following the fiscal year-end 
related to sales and use tax returns due before year end. 

This Space Has Been Left Blank Intentionally 

56 



-

-

-

-
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MUNICIPALITY OF J UANA DiAZ, 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The Municipality is authorized by Law No. 81 to impose and collect property taxes from any natural 
or legal person that, at January I of each calendar year: (I) is engaged in trade or business and is the 
owner of personal or real property used in trade or business or (2) owns residential real property with 
a value in excess of $15,000 (at 1957 estimated market prices). 

The Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM, by its Spanish acronym) is a governmental entity 
not related to the Municipality which is responsible for the billings and collections of real and 
personal property taxes on behalf of the Municipality and all other municipalities in the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, CRIM informs to the 
Municipality the estimated amount of property taxes expected to be collected for the ensuing fiscal 
year. Throughout the fiscal year, CRIM advances funds (estimated collections) to the Municipality 
based on the initial estimated (forecasted) collection amounts for the fiscal year. CRIM is required by 
law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between 
the amounts advanced to the Municipality and the property tax amounts actually collected from 
taxpayers on behalf of the Municipality during the fiscal year. This settlement has to be completed on 
a final basis not later than December 31 following the fiscal year end. If in any given fiscal year, 
CRIM remits to the Municipality property tax advances that are less than the property taxes actually 
collected by CRIM on behalf of the Municipality, then CRIM will increase the amount of the monthly 
property tax advances during for the next fiscal year. However, if advances exceed the amount 
actually collected by CRfM, then CRfM will reduce the amount of the monthly property tax advances 
during the next fiscal year. 

Personal property taxes are self-assessed by taxpayers every year using the book value of personal 
property assets owned by the taxpayer at January I (assessment date) and reporting such taxable value 
through a personal property tax return filed on May 15 subsequent to the assessment date. The total 
personal property tax rate in force at June 30, 2012 was 7.03 percent (of which taxpayers pay 6.83 
percent and the remaining 0.20 percent is paid by the Department of Treasury, as a subsidy). 

Real property taxes are assessed by CRIM. The assessment on real property is made every January l 
and is based on estimated current values of the property, deflated to 1957 market prices. The total 
real property tax rate in force at June 30, 2012 was 9.03 percent (of which 8.83 percent is paid by 
taxpayers and the remaining 0.20 percent is also paid by the Department of Treasury, as a subsidy). 

Residential real property .occupied by its owner (not engaged in trade or business) is exempt from 
property taxes only on the first $15,000 of the assessed value (at 1957 market prices). For exempt 
amounts, the Department of Treasury assumes the payment of the basic tax (4.00 percent and 6.00 
percent for personal and real property, respectively), except for property assessed for less than $3 ,500 
(at 1957 market prices), for which no payment is made by the Department of Treasury. 

According to Law No. 81, included within the total personal and real property tax rates of 7.03 
percent and 9.03 percent, respectively, there is a levy of an annual special tax of 1.03 percent of the 
assessed value of all real and personal property not exonerated from taxation. This special tax is 
levied by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico but is collected by CRIM. Collections of this special tax 
are directly remitted by CRIM to the debt service fund of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, for the 
payment of the general long-term debt of the state government. 
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In addition, included within the total personal and real property tax rates of 7.03 percent and 9.03 
percent, respectively, there is a portion of the tax rate in the amount of 2.00 percent that is restricted 
for the Municipality's debt service requirements of bonds. Such amounts are recorded in the 
Municipality's debt service fund. 

The portion of the property taxes recorded in the general fund is used to finance the operating 
activities of the Municipality, including the payment of: (I) the insurance premiums acquired through 
the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury, (2) the monthly contributions to CRIM, which are statutori ly 
required as the Municipality's share of CRIM's operating expenses, ( 4) statutory contributions to the 
Puerto Rico Health Services Administration (PRHSA), as the Municipality's share of the cost of the 
public health insurance coverage provided to qualifying low-income citizens and, (5) certain notes 
payable to CRIM and the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury, which are recorded within 
intergovernmental payables in the accompanying GWFS and GFFS. The 0.20 percent of unrestricted 
personal and real property taxes paid by the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury as a subsidy is 
recorded in the Municipality's general fund. 

The Additional Lottery System of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Additional Lottery) is an 
operational unit reported as an enterprise fund in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's basic financial 
statements, which currently operates several betting alternatives to the citizens of Puerto Rico. The 
Additional Lottery is required every fiscal year to distribute a portion of its excess of revenues over 
expenses as follows: 

• Thirty five percent of its net earnings (defined as the excess of revenues over expenses less an 
amount earmarked for the Fund for Rent and Home Improvement Subsidy Program for the Low­
Income Qualifying Elderly) is earmarked to the municipalities of the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico, of which a maximum of $26 million, on an annual basis, is distributed to the Municipal 
Equalization Fund held by CRIM to cover operating expenses and permanent improvements of 
the municipalities. 

• An additional amount not exceeding $16 million, on an annual basis, is distributed to the 
Municipal Equalization Fund, provided it is within the thirty-five percent corresponding to the 
municipalities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. When the accumulated municipal 
appropriations from the municipalities' Puerto Rico Health Reform are covered up to June 30, 
1997, these resources will be assigned to PRHSA. 

At June 30, 2012, property taxes receivable recorded in the debt service fund amounted to $128, 773. 
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6. Intergovernmental Receivables and Payables 

Intergovernmental receivables and payables recorded in the accompanying GWFS and GFFS are as 
follows: 

\fajor Other Total Statement 
governmental goHrnmental governmental 

funds funds funds 

Intergovernmental receivables: 
Grants and contributions: 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 11 5,998 115,998 $ 

U.S. Department of Energy 15.555 15,555 

Puerto Rico Office of the Commissioner 
Of Municipal Affairs 76,005 76,005 

Puerto Rico Department of Labor 22,915 22.915 

Puerto Rico Transit Safety Commission 69,701 69,701 

Puerto Rico Treasury Department - general fund 86,983 86,983 

Puerto Rico Emergency Management Agency 92,743 92,743 

Puerto Rico Administration for Integral Care and 
Development of Children 144.325 70,619 214,944 

Puerto Rico Special Communities Office 10,954 10,954 

Total intergovernmental receivables $ 423,311 282,487 705,798 $ 

Intergovernmental payables: 
Payroll withholdings (general fund): 

U.S. Department of Treasury - Internal Revenue Service $ 54,077 54,077 $ 

Puerto Rico Treasury Department 2,3 12 2,312 

Puerto Rico Child Support Agency 3,639 3,639 

Employees Assodation of the Government of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 18.403 18,403 

Employees Retirement System of the Government of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 90.267 90,267 

Utilities (general fund): 
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority 138,721 138,721 

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority 32,229 32,229 

Miscellaneous (general fund): 
General Services Administration 102,655 102,655 

Total intergovernmental payables $ 442,303 442,303 $ 

Intergovernmental receivables and payables represent the pending settlements of the aforementioned 
intergovernmental transactions. 

At June 30, 2012, the earned and unavailable intergovernmental grant and contributions (deferred 
revenues) reported in the accompanying general fund, amounted to $86,983. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF J UANA DiAZ, 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The composition of inter-fund balances at June 30, 2012 and for the fiscal year then ended is as 
follows: 

.\lajor go\•ernmental funds 

Other Total 
General go\•ern mental governmental 

Due/advances to: fund funds funds 
Major governmental funds: 

General fund $ 320 $ 320 

CDBG fund 49,081 49,081 

Capiial improvement bond fund 17,000 17,000 

Head Sian fund 24.125 24,125 

Non-maJor governmental funds: 515.189 153.826 669,015 

Total $ 605.395 154,146 $ 759,541 

The principal purposes of inter-fund receivables and payables are: 

• Recognize in the general fund the outstanding balance of the loans granted to CDBG fund 
($49,08 l ), head start fund ($24, 125), capital improvement bond fund ($17,000), and non­
major funds ($515, 189) to temporarily cover the payroll and other operating costs of several 
federally and state funded programs. 

• Recognize in the non-major funds the amounts due from general fund ($320), due from and 
due to non-major funds ($153,826) mostly for errors in the disbursements and deposits 
process. 

Inter-fund receivables and payables represent the pending settlements of the aforementioned transfers 
at June 30, 2012. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012: 

a) Governmental Activities 

Cost Cost 
basis at basis at 

beginning of Reductions/ end of 
fiscal year Additions Reclassifications fiscal year 

Cost basis: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 2,453,035 $ 2,453,035 
Construction in progress 302,684 3,279,078 3,581 ,762 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 2.755,719 3,279,078 6,034,797 

Capital assets. being depreciated: 
Buildings, structures, and improvements 72,599,505 83,732 72,683,237 
Infrastructure 7,112,974 7,112,974 
Machinery and equipment, and furniture 

and fixtures 6,487,383 156,203 6,643,586 
Licensed vehicles 6.474,421 399.237 6,873,658 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 92,674,283 639,172 93,313,455 

Total cost basis of capital assets $ 95,430,002 3.918,250 $ 99,348,252 

Accumulated Accumulated 
Depreciation Depreciation 

at end of Reductions/ at end of 
fiscal year Additions Reclassifications fiscal year 

Accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings, structures. and improvements $ 14,433,223 2,306,048 $ 

Infrastructure 2.678.548 275.495 
Machinery and equipment. and 

furniture and fixtures 4,841 ,831 511,424 
Licensed vehicles 5,589,811 301,927 

Total accumulated depreciation 27,543.413 3,394,894 

Net capital assets. governmental activities $ 67,886,589 523,356 $ 

The Municipality did not have complete and accurate accounting records of capital assets at June 
30,2012. 

The infrastructure assets recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets for $4, 158,93 I 
(net of accumulated depreciation of $2,954,043) do not include a substantial portion of the 
Municipality's general infrastructure assets that were constructed or acquired by the Municipality 
from 1980 through June 30, 2012. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF J UANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEAL TH OF P UERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2012 

Several real property assets, including buildings, structures, land and land improvements have not 
been recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets at June 30, 2012. 

Depreciation and amortization expense of governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2012 was charged to functions/programs in the accompanying statement of activities as 
follows: 

General government $ 127.524 
Public safety 896,173 
Economic and urban development 14,342 
Health and sanitation 98,411 
Culture, recreation, and education 2,258,444 

Total depreciation and amortization expense $ 3,394.894 

Business-fJ!J!..e Activities 
Cost Cost 

basis st basis at 
beginning of end of 
fiscal year Increase Decrease fiscal year 

Business-type aCJivities: 
Cos1 basis: 

Capital assets. not being depreciated - land $ 96,229 $ 96,229 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 96,229 96,229 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings, structures, and improvements 3,458,087 31,030 3,489,117 
Machinery and equipment, and furniture 

and fixtures 309,549 5,510 315,059 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 3,767,636 36.540 3,804,176 

Total cost basis of capital assets $ 3,863,865 36.540 $ 3,900,405 

Accumulated Accumulated 
depreciation Depreciation 
at beginning at end of 
offisul year Increase Decrease fiscal year 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization: 
Buildings, structures, and improvements $ 2,M2,206 116,292 $ 2,558,498 
Machinery and equipment. and 

furniture and fixtures 266,150 4,944 271 ,094 
Total accumulated depreciation 2,708,356 121 ,236 2,829.592 

et capital assets, business-type 
activities s 1.155.509 (8.t.696) $ 1,070,813 

Depreciation and amortization expense of business-type activities, amounting to $121,236 for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, was charged to the public housing and welfare function in the 
accompanying statement of activities. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

At June 30, 2012, deferred revenues recorded in the GWFS and the governmental fund financial 
statements are as follows: 

Measurable and unavailable 
revenues: 

lntergovemmental grants 
and contributions 

Total measurable and 
unavailable revenue 

Unearned revenues: 
Municipal licenses 
Intergovernmental grants 

and contributions 
Total unearned revenues 

Total deferred revenues 

General 
fund 

$ 86.983 

86,983 

1,493.785 

1,493,795 
$ 1,580,768 

Non major 
funds 

331.203 
331.203 
331 ,203 

Total 
governmental 

funds 

86.983 

86.983 

1,493,785 

331.203 
1,824,988 
1,911,971 

This Space Has Been Left Blank Intentionally 

63 

Statement 
of net 
assets 

$ 

1.493,785 

331.203 
1,824.988 

$ 1,824,988 



-

-

-

10. Long-Term Obligations 

MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

The general long-tenn debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows: 

Balance at Borrowings Payments Balance at Balance 
beginning of Or and end of due within 
fiscal year Additions deductions fiscal year one year 

Governmental activities: 

Bonds payable: 
General obligation serial bonds $ 21,545,000 135,000 850,000 $ 20,830,000 $ 

Public improvement serial bonds 1,358,000 183,000 1,175,000 

Notes payable: 
Section I 08 loan guarantee notes -

series 2004-A 5,300,000 100,000 5,200,000 
Municipal Revenue Collection Center: 

Law No. 146 of October 11, 2001 207,476 10.497 196,979 
Land Information Management System 23.51 1 23.511 
Settlement Statement 2009-2010 1,083,430 1,083,430 
Settlement Statement 20I0-2011 445,386 445,386 
Settlement Statement 2011-2012 225,591 225,591 

Puerto Rico Department of Treasury: 
Financing agreement to pay legal 

judgment; JAC-96-034 1 (603) 50,735 50,735 

Compensated absences 2,391,277 402,310 450,203 2,343,384 

Totals for governmental activities $ 32,404,815 762,901 2,751.376 $ 30,416,340 $ 

Busineu-(ype activities: 

Mortgage notes payable: 
Section 515 loan no. 001 $ 1,136,918 27.989 $ 1,108,929 $ 

Section 515 loan no. 002 120,846 2,382 118,464 
Totals for business-type activities $ 1,257.764 30,371 $ 1,227,393 $ 

Historically, the general fund has been used to liquidate the notes payable to CRIM, the Puerto Rico 
Health Services Administration and the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury, compensated absences, 
and any other long-tenn liabilities other than bonds. 

a) Debt Limitation 

The Municipal Legislature is legally authorized to approve the contracting of debts of the 
Municipality. Nevertheless, the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico also 
provide that: 
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• Direct obligations of the Municipality (evidenced principally by bonds) are backed by the full 
faith , credit and taxing power of the Municipality; and 

• Direct obligations are not to be issued by the Municipality if the amount of the principal of, 
and the interest on, such bonds and bond anticipation notes (and on all bonds and notes issued 
thereafter) which are payable in any fiscal year, together with any amount paid by the 
Municipality in the preceding fiscal year on account of bonds or bond anticipation notes 
guaranteed by the Municipality, exceed 10 percent of the total assessed value of the property 
located within the Municipality plus the balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service 
fund, for bonds payable and bond anticipation notes to be repaid with the proceeds of 
property taxes restricted for debt service. 

b) Bonds Payable 

The Municipality issues general obligation and public improvement serial bonds to finance the 
acquisition, construction and improvement of capital assets, as well as, to finance certain 
operating needs, including the payment to suppliers in certain circumstances. 

The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth provide that the Municipality's public debt will 
constitute a first claim on the available revenue of the Municipality. Public debt is composed of 
bonds payable. The good faith, credit and taxing power of the Municipality are irrevocably 
pledged for the prompt payment of the principal and interest of bonds. 

As more fully described in Note 5, the Municipality levies an annual additional special property 
tax of 1. 75 percent of the assessed value of personal and real property. The proceeds of this 
additional special tax are deposited in a sinking fund established at the Government Development 
Bank for Puerto Rico, fiscal agent, whereby sufficient funds are set aside to redeem the bonds 
payable of the Municipality in minimum annual and semiannual principal and interest payments. 
The collections of this special tax are recorded in the Municipality's debt service fund. 

As more fully described in Note 4, the Municipality impose and collect sales and uses taxe:> of 
one point five ( 1.5) percent, of which the Municipality has elected to restrict a portion amounting 
.4% for the payment of long-term bonds. The collections of this sales and use tax are recorded in 
the Municipality's debt service fund. 
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

For financial reporting purposes, the outstanding balances of bonds represent the total principal to 
be repaid. Bonds payable is composed as follows at June 30, 2012: 

General Obligation Bonds: 

1996 serial bonds (face amount of$ I, I 80,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $25,000 to $110,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.2% at June 30, 2012) 
through July, 1, 2016. 

1999 serial bonds (face amount of $2,270,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $45,000 to $215,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (6% at June 30, 2012) 
through July, I, 2019. 

1999 serial bonds (face amount $1 ,025,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $40,000 to $115,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates ( 4.5% at June 30, 20 12) 
through July, I, 2014. 

2003 serial bonds (face amount $900,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $15,000 to $75,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates ( 4.5% at June 30, 2012) 
through July I, 2026. 

2003 serial bonds (face amount of $215,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $5,000 to $15,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (4.5% at June 30, 2012) 
through July I, 2026. 

2003 serial bonds (face amount of $1 ,5 I 0,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $25,000 to $120,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates ( 4. 7% at June 30, 2012) 
through July 1, 2027. 

2004 serial bonds (face amount of $785,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $15,000 to $65,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (4.7% at June 30, 2012) 
through July I, 2027. 

2005 serial bonds (face amount of $875,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $10,000 to $65,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates ( 4. 7% at June 30, 2012) 
through July I, 2028. 
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2007 serial bonds (face amount of $2, 180,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $30,000 to $185,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates ( l. 7% at June 30, 20 I 2) 
through July I, 203 I . 

2007 serial bonds (face amount of $1,9 l 0,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $25,000 to $160,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (l.7% at June 30, 2012) 
through July l , 2031. 

2008 serial bonds (face amount of $255,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $5,000 to $20,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (1.7% at June 30, 2012) 
through July I, 2032. 

2008 serial bonds (face amount of $4,642,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $83,000 to $390,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (l.7% at June 30, 2012) 
through July I, 2032. 

2010 serial bonds (face amount of $2,970,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $50,000 to $230,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 2012) 
through July l, 2034. 

2011 serial bonds (face amount of $835,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $ l 0,000 to $75,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 2012) 
through July 1, 2035. 

2011 serial bonds (face amount of $1,060,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $120,000 to $185,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 2012) 
through July 1, 2017. 

2011 serial bonds (face amount of $640,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $75,000 to $110,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 2012) 
through July 1, 2035. 

20 I I serial bonds (face amount of $755,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $5,000 to $65,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 2012) 
through July I, 2017. 
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

2011 serial bonds (face amount of $875,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $I 0,000 to $75,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 2012) 
through July I, 2035. 

2012 serial bonds (face amount of $135,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $5,000 to $10,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 2012) 
through July 1, 2036. 

Total general obligation bonds 

Public Improvement Bonds: 

1995 serial bonds (face amount of $1,758,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $44,000 to $142,000; plus interests due in 
annual installments at variable rates (5.62% at June 30, 2012) through 
January 1, 2016. 

1995 serial bonds (face amount of $615,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $10,000 to $55,000; plus interests due in 
semiannual installments at variable rates (7.71% at June 30, 2012) 
through July 1, 2018. 

1996 serial bonds (face amount of $835,000) due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $18,000 to $58,000; plus interests due in 
annual installments at fixed rate of 4.50% through January I, 2019. 

Total public improvement bonds 

Total bonds payable 

Outstanding 
balance 

865,000 

135,000 

20,830,000 

520,000 

305,000 

350,000 

1,175,GJO 

$ 22,005,000 

Variable interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by GOB and are based on the 
fluctuation of GOB's weighted average rate for its commercial paper program. Under this 
program, GOB issues commercial paper: (I) in the taxable and tax-exempt markets of the United 
States of America, (2) in the Eurodollar market, and (3) to corporations having tax exemptions 
under the Commonwealth's Industrial Incentives Acts and, which qualify for benefits provided by 
the former Section 936 of the U.S. lntemal Revenue Code. 
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Interest expense on bonds payable amounted to $928,013 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 
Annual debt service requirements of maturity for bonds payable are as follows: 

Fiscal year 
ending 

June 30, Principal Interest 

2013 $ 1,118,000 $ 1,313,720 
2014 1,205,000 1,299,089 
2015 1,298,000 1,271,802 
2016 1,259,000 1,189,015 
2017 1, 192,000 I, 100,896 

2018-2022 4,418,000 4,511, 139 
2023-2027 4,685,000 3, 152,061 
2028-2032 4,985,000 1,392, l 00 
2033-2037 1,845,000 127,880 

Totals $ 22,005,000 $ 15,357,702 

Section 108 Loan Guarantee Notes Payable - Series 2004-A 

On June 30, 2004, the Municipality entered into a loan guarantee commitment of $5,500,000 with 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) pursuant to an application under 
Section I 08 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (Section I 08). Section l 08 
commitments are required to be supported by a credit subsidy appropriation pursuant to the 
Federal Credit Refonn Act of 1990 (Credit Refonn Act) and implementing guidance issued by 
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB). Therefore, in connection with its guarantee 
of these notes, HUD obligated appropriated funds to cover the credit subsidy cost of the loan 
guarantee, as required under the Credit Reform Act. Under the Credit Refonn Act procedures, 
such funds are disbursed into a financing account as loan proceeds are disbursed by the lender (a 
commercial bank). The financing account is in some respects equivalent to an internal · Jss 
reserve for the federal government. Each disbursement into the financing account is equal to th.-! 
loan advance times the credit subsidy rate, which is part of HU D's budget approved by OMB and 
the Congress. 

The proceeds of $5,500,000 of the loan guarantee commitment are used by the Municipality to 
finance the construction of the Fine Arts Center and to provide low-income communities with 
another source of financing for the economic development, housing rehabilitation, public 
facilities and large-scale physical development projects. The notes on the loan guarantee 
commitment bear interest at various rates ranging from 3.50 percent to 6.70 percent. The 
proceeds and uses of the loan guarantee commitment are accounted for in the Section l 08 loan 
guarantee, a non-major capital projects fund. The loan guarantee commitment is repaid with grant 
awards received from the Community Development Block Grants - Entitlement Grants Program 
(CDBG), administered by HUD. Principal and interest on these notes are accounted for in the 
Section I 08 loan guarantee fund, a non-major capital projects fund. At June 3 0, 2012, the 
outstanding principal balance of the loan guarantee commitment amounted to $5,200,000. 
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20 12 

Interest expense on the Section I 08 loan guarantee notes payable amounted to $30 1,240 for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The principal and interest maturities on the Section I 08 loan 
guarantee commitment are as follows: 

Fiscal year 
Ending 

J une 30, 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

2018-2022 
2023-2027 

Totals 

Principal 

$ 100,000 
150,000 
150,000 
200,000 
300,000 

2,500,000 
1,800,000 

$ 5,200,000 

Interest 

$ 296,365 
290,075 
282,372 
273, 120 
259,540 
831,820 
161 ,640 

$ 2,394,932 

d) Notes Payable to Mu11icipal Revenue Collection Center 

The Municipality had the following notes payables to Municipal Revenue Collection Center 
(CRIM, by its Spanish acronym) at June 30, 2012: 

• Law No. 146 - On September 24, 2002, CRIM, on behalf of the municipalities of Puerto 
Rico, entered into a financing agreement with GOB pursuant to the provisions of Law No. 
146 of October 11, 2001 , as amended (Law No. 146). The purpose of this financing 
agreement was to extinguish in advance certain bonds payable issued by Public Finance 
Corporation (PFC), a subsidiary of the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico, 
which were originally issued to pay certain property tax receivables owned by the 
municipalities of Puerto Rico through 1996, which were acquired by PFC with recourse. 

The original face amount of the note allocated by CRIM to the Municipality was $736, 7 L. 7, 
for a term not exceeding 30 years. The note bears interest at 6.50 percent during its first five 
years. Subsequently, from years 6 through 30, the loan shall bear variable interest at a rate 
of 125 points over the 5-year LIBOR rate, which will be adjusted every five years. During 
the first five years of the note, commenced on July I, 2003, the Municipality shall pay only 
interest, except for property tax receivables collections related to the transaction explained 
in the above paragraph, which wi ll be applied as principal payment to reduce the debt 
balance. 

At the end of the first five years of the note, the repayment tenns and conditions of the note 
shall be renegotiated to allow the Municipality to pay the outstanding balance of the note in 
equal installments of principal plus interest, through maturity. Interest payments on this 
financing agreement are accounted for in the general fund. The outstanding principal of the 
note payable to CRIM amounted to $196,979, at June 30, 2012. Interest expense on these 
notes amounted to $12,905 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 
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• Fiscal Year 2011-2012 Settlement Statement - On December 30, 2012, CRIM, as 
required by law, prepared the final settlement for the fiscal year 2011-2012, whereby a 
comparison was made between the amounts advanced to the Municipality and amounts 
actually collected from taxpayers. According to the final settlement, advances to the 
Municipality exceeded the amount actually collected by the CRlM, and therefore, according 
to law, a payable to the CRlM amounted to $225,591 should be recorded in the GWFS at 
June 30, 2012. But, although such debt was recorded in the GWFS as recommended by 
external auditors, the Municipality started a formal claim requesting a revision of final 
settlement prepared by the CRIM for the fiscal year 2011-2012. 

• Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Settlement Statement - On December 30, 2011 , CRIM, as 
required by law, prepared the final settlement for the fiscal year 2010-2011, whereby a 
comparison was made ben.veen the amounts advanced to the Municipality and amounts 
actually collected from taxpayers. According to the final settlement, advances to the 
Municipality exceeded the amount actually collected by the CRIM, and therefore, according 
to law, a payable to the CRIM amounted to $445,386 should be recorded in the GWFS at 
June 30, 20 11. But, although such debt was recorded in the GWFS as recommended by 
external auditors, the Municipality will started a formal claim requesting a revision of the 
final settlement prepared by the CRIM for the fiscal year 20l0-2011. 

e) Compensated Absences 

At June 3 0, 2012, the government-wide statement of net assets - governmental activities includes 
a liability amounting $2,343,384, of which $1 ,523,600 represents accrued sick leave benefits, and 
$819,784 represents accrued vacation benefits, representing the Municipality's commitment to 
fund such costs from future operations. 

j) Mortgage Notes Payable - Section 515 (business-type activities) 

The long-term debt of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049) consist of two 
mortgages notes, collateralized with land and buildings, payable to the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture Rural Development in monthly installments of $8,880 and $1,094, respectively, 
including interest at an annual rate of 8.00% and 10.00%, respectively, (reduced to 7.00% and 
9.00%, respectively) through December 2031. 

At June 30, 2012, the outstanding principal balance of the two mortgage notes amounted to 
$I, l 08,929 and $118,464, respectively. The mortgages notes are subject to various positive, 
negative and restrictive covenants that the Municipality has complied with at June 30, 2012. 

Accrued interest payable on these notes amounted to $4,776 at June 30, 2012 which is recorded 
as part of business-type activities in the accompanying statement of net assets and the statement 
of net assets - proprietary fund. Interest expense on these notes amounted to $89,327 for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, which is recorded in the accompanying statement of activities 
and the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets - proprietary fund. 
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11. Employees' Retirement Systems 

a) Plan Description 

The Municipality's employees part1c1pate in the Employees' Retirement System of the 
Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS), a cost-sharing multi-employer (as 
related to the Municipality's reporting entity) defined pension plan established by the 
Commonwealth. Substantially all full-time employees of the Commonwealth and substantially 
all municipalities are covered by ERS under the terms of Public Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951, as 
amended (Act No. 447). All regular and temporary employees of the Municipality become plan 
members of ERS at the date of employment, while it is optional for officers appointed. 

ERS members, other than those joining it after March 31, 1990, are eligible for the benefits 
described below: 

• Retirement Annuity 

ERS members are eligible for a retirement annuity upon reaching the following age: 

Policemen and firemen: 
50 with 25 years of credited service 
58 with I 0 years of credited service 

Other employees: 
55 with 25 years of credited service 
58 with 10 years of credited service 

ERS members are eligible for monthly benefit payments determined by the application of the 
stipulated benefit ratios to the member's average compensation. Average compensation is 
computed based on the highest 36 months of compensation recognized by ERS. The annuity, 
for which a member is eligible, is limited to a minimum of $300 per month and a maximum 
of 75 percent of the average compensation. 

• Merit Annuity 

ERS members are eligible for merit annuity with a minimum of 30 years or more of credited 
service. The annuity for which the plan member is eligible is limited to a minimum of 65 
percent and a maximum of 75 percent of the average compensation. 

• Deferred Retirement Annuity · 

A participating employee who ceases to be an employee of the Municipality after having 
accumulated a minimum of ten years of credited service qualifies for retirement benefits 
provided his/her contributions are left in ERS until reaching 58 years of age. 

• Coordinated Plan 

On the coordinated plan, by the time the employee reaches 65 years old and begins to receive 
social security benefits, the pension benefits are reduced by the following: 

(a) $165 per month, if retired with 55 years of age and 30 years of credited service. 

72 



-
MliNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ, 

COMMONWEALTH Of' P UERTO RICO 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

(b) $110 per month, ifretired with less than 55 years of age and 30 years of credited 
service. 

( c) Al I other between $82 and $ l 00 per month. 

(d) Disability annuities under the coordinated plan are also adjusted at age 65 and in 
some cases can be reduced over $165 per month. 

• Non-Coordinated Plan 

On the non-coordinated plan the participating employee and does not have any change on the 
pension benefits upon receiving social security benefits. 

• Reversionary Annuity 

An ERS member, upon retirement, could elect to receive a reduced retirement annuity giving 
one or more benefit payments to his/her dependents. The life annuity payments would start 
after the death of the retiree for an amount not less than $240 per year or greater than the 
annuity payments being received by the retiree. 

• Occupational Disability Annuity 

A participating employee, who as a direct result of the performance of his/her occupation is 
totally and permanently disabled, is eligible for a disability annuity of 50 percent of the 
compensation received at the time of the disability. 

• Nonoccupational Disability Annuity 

A participating employee, totally and permanently disabled for causes not related to his/her 
occupation and with no less than I 0 years of credited service, is eligible for an annuity of 
1.50 percent of the average compensation of the first 20 years of credited services, increased 
by 2 percent for every additional year of credited service in excess of 20 years. 

• Death Benefits 

Occupational: 

(a) Surviving spouse - annuity equal to 50 percent of the participating employee's 
salary at the date of the death. 

(b) Children - $10 per month for each child, minor or student, up to a maximum 
benefit per fami ly of$ I 00. 
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Beneficiary - the contributions and interest accumulated as of the date of the death plus an 
amount equal to the annual compensation at the time of the death. 

Post-retirement: 

Beneficiary with surviving spouse age 60 or over and a child, 18 or under, up to 30 percent 
(60 percent, if not covered under Title lI of the Social Security Act) (increased to 50 percent 
effective January 1, 2005) of retiree's pension or otherwise the excess, if any, of the 
accumulated contributions at the time of retirement over the total annuity benefits received 
before death, limited to a minimum of $750. 

• Refunds 

A participating employee who ceases his/her employment with the Municipality without the 
right to a retirement annuity has the right to a refund of the contributions to ERS plus any 
interest earned thereon. 

• Cost of Living Adjustment for Pension Benefits 

Public Act No. 10 of May 21 , 1992 (Act No. I 0) provided for increases of 3 percent every 
three or more years of retirement. Act No. l 0 requires further legislation to grant this 
increase every three years subject to the presentation of actuarial studies regarding its costs 
and the source of financing. To protect the financial health of ERS, the increase granted 
during 200 I and the one granted on ~anuary I, 2005 are being financed by the Municipality 
and the other participating employers. 

To avoid any economic impact on ERS, the employers are responsible for contributing to 
ERS the amounts to cover the benefit payments and the employer and employee contributions 
with respect to the participants covered until the participants reach the normal retirement age. 

• Amendment to Act No. 447 effective January 1, 2000 to create a Defined Contribution 
Plan 

On September 24, 1999, Public Act No. 305, an amendment to Act No. 447, was enacted to 
establish a defined contribution plan, known as System 2000, to cover employees joining 
ERS on or after January I, 2000. 

Employees that participated in the original plan as of December 31, 1999, had the opportunity 
to elect to either stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to System 2000. Employees that 
joined the Municipality on or after January I, 2000, were only allowed to become members 
of System 2000. 
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System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under 
this new plan, there is a pool of plan assets, which is invested by the System, together with 
those of the cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan. Neither the Commonwealth 
nor the Municipality guarantee benefits at retirement age. The annuity is based on a fonnula 
which assumes that each fiscal year the employee's contribution (with a minimum of 8.28 
percent of the employee's salary up to a maximum of 10 percent) is invested as instructed by 
the employee in an account which either: (I) earns a fixed rate based on the two-year 
Constant Maturity Treasury Notes, (2) earns a rate equal to 75 percent of the return of the 
ERS ' investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (3) earns a combination of both 
alternatives. Participants receive periodic account statements similar to those of defined 
contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability benefits are not granted under 
System 2000, rather are provided to those participants that voluntarily elect to participate in a 
private insurance long-tenn disability program. The employers' contributions (9.28 percent 
of the employee' s salary) with respect to employees under System 2000 will continue and 
will be used to fund the cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan. 

System 2000 reduced the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those employees who joined 
the current plan on or after January l , 2000. 

Historically, the state government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico has reported ERS 
and System 2000 in its basic financia l statements as pension trust funds. Accordingly, the 
Commonwealth is currently assuming any actuarial deficiency that may exist or arise related 
to the Municipality' s participating employees because ERS does not allocate to the 
Municipality any actuarial deficiencies pertaining to participating municipal employees. The 
Municipality is only required by law to make statutory contributions at the rates detailed 
below. 

• Amendments to Act No. 447 

The Senate and the House of Representatives of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico have the 
authority for establishing or amending the contribution requirements of System 2000 by 
approving the necessary amendments or laws, subject to the final approval of the Governor of 
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. 

In June and July 2003, the Governor of the Commonwealth signed three Public Acts that 
provided the following certain benefits to retirees: 

(a) Increase in minimum monthly pension payments to $300, effective January l, 
2005. 

(b) Triennial 3 percent increase in all pensions, effective January I, 2005. 

(c) Increase in widow and/or beneficiaries to 50 percent of the benefit received by 
the deceased pensioner, effective January l, 2005. 

All the benefits granted will be funded through budgetary assignments in the Municipality's 
general fund with respect to its retired employees. 
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The Board of Trustees of ERS approved, effective November 17, 2003, an increase in the 
amount granted on personal loans to participating employees from $3,000 to $5,000. 

b) Funding Policy 

The contribution requirement to ERS is established by law and is not actuarially determined. 
These contributions are as follows: 

Municipality and 
other employers 
Employees: 
Coordination plan: 

Supplementation 
plan: 

9.28 percent of applicable payroll 

5.78 percent of gross salary up to $6,600 
per year, plus 8.28 percent gross salary in 
excess of $6,600. 
8.28 percent of gross salary. This is the 
only choice available to policemen, 
firemen and mayors 

The contribution requirement to System 2000 is also established by law and is not actuarially 
determined. These contributions are as follows: 

Municipality and 
other employers 
Employees: 

c) Actual Contributions 

9.28 percent of applicable payroll 

5.78 percent of gross salary up to $6,600 
per year, plus 8.28 percent gross salary in 
excess of $6,600. 

The actual combined employer and employee contributions to ERS and System 2000 for the 
current and past two years, which are equal to the statutory required contributions, are as follows: 

Fiscal year 
ended June 30, Act No. 447 S_ystem 2000 Total 

2012 $ 449,502 $ 366,307 $ 815,809 
2011 409,234 366,557 775,791 
2010 431 ,147 346,577 777,724 
Totals $ 1,289,883 $ 1,079,441 $ 2,369,324 

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 20 I 0, 2011, and 2012, the Municipality and the 
participating employees contributed at least I 00 percent of the required contributions to ERS and 
System 2000. The authority under which obligations to contribute to ERS and System 2000 by 
the plans' members, employers and other contributing entities (i.e., state or municipal 
contributions) are established or may be amended by law by the House of Representatives, the 
Senate and the Governor of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. 
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Readers can obtain copies of the audited basic financial statements (GAAP basis) of ERS and 
System 2000 by writing to Mr. Hector M. Mayol Kauffmann, Executive Director of the 
Retirement Systems Administration of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the entity that 
administers ERS and System 2000) at PO Box 42004, Minillas Station, Santurce, Puerto Rico 
00940. 

12. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs Obligations 

The Municipality owns a municipal solid waste landfill. However, the Municipality has not adopted 
the required provisions of Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Land.fill Closure 
and Postciosure Care Costs, issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB No. 
18) and the regulations set forth by the U.S. Environment Protection Agency (EPA) in its "Solid 
Waste Disposal Facility Criteria", issued on October 9, 1991. According to these standard and 
regulations, the Municipality is required to place a final cover on the Municipality's solid waste 
landfill site when it stops accepting waste, and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring 
functions at the site for 30 years after closure. The Municipality has not performed an independent 
study of the activities that need to be implemented at the Municipality's solid waste landfill to 
guarantee the maximum yield of available space and to comply with applicable state and federal 
regulations and, accordingly, the accompanying statement of net assets does not include the required 
liability for closure and postclosure care costs of the solid waste landfill using current costs allocated 
based on the actual landfill capacity used at June 30, 2012. 

13. Commitments, Contingencies and Uncertainties 

Claims and Judgments 

The Municipality is defendant in various legal proceedings pertaining to matters incidental to the 
performance of routine governmental operations, including allegations of improper actions, and other 
legal matters that arise in the ordinary course of the Municipality's activities. Under Act No. 104 of 
June 25, 1955, as amended, persons are allowed to sue the Municipality only for causes of actions set 
forth in said Act to a maximum amount of $75,000 or $ 150,000 if it involves actions for damages to 
more than one person or where a single injured party is entitled to several causes of action. Under 
certain circumstances, as provided in Act No. 9 of November 26, 1975, as amended, the Municipality 
may provide its officers and employees with legal representation, as well as assume the payment of 
any judgment that may be entered against them. There is no limitation on the payment of such 
judgment. 

One of such cases is a lawsuit filed in 2002 (Case #JDP2002-008), arising from allegations of 
politically motivated prosecution against some current and former employees of the Municipality, 
who claimed their reinstallation to the former jobs, including payback salaries, and/ or claim punitive 
and compensatory damages compensation ranging from $200,000 to $500,000 for each plaintiff. The 
Puerto Rico Court of First Instance failed against the Municipality, ordering a payment of $1,075,762, 
plus $ 186,000 for punitive damages. This decision was vigorously appealed in the Puerto Rico 
Appeals Court, who revoke partially the Puerto Rico Court of First Instance. The Municipality 
intends to continue to vigorously pursue available appeals up to the Puerto Rico Supreme Court. The 
Municipality believes that it has valid bases in law and fact to overturn or appeal the verdict. 
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As a result, the Municipality believes that the likelihood that the amount of the judgment will be 
affirmed is not probable, and, accordingly, that the amount of any loss cannot be reasonably estimated 
at this time. Because the Municipality believes that this potential loss is not probable or estimable, it 
has not recorded any reserves or contingencies related to this legal matter. In the event that the 
Municipality's assumptions used to evaluate this matter as neither probable nor estimable change in 
future periods, it may be required to record a liability for an adverse outcome. 

With respects to another pending or threatened litigation, the Municipality has reported no liabilities 
as of June 30, 2012. Management believes, based on the advice of the legal counsel, that the potential 
claims against the Municipality not covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial 
resources for its payment. 

Construction 

The Municipality had commitments at June 30, 2012 of approximately $2,300,000 for the 
construction, improvements, or renovation of several capital facilities and the capital assets. 

Encumbrances 

The Municipality has recorded, outstanding encumbrances amounting to $80,303 in the general fund 
at June 30, 2012. The Municipality intends to honor these encumbrances, which will continue to be 
liquidated under the current year's budget during a lapse period that extends into the subsequent 
fiscal year. 

Federal Financially Assisted Programs 

The Municipality receives financial assistance from the federal government in the form of grants and 
entitlements. Receipts of grants are generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions 
of the grant agreements and applicable federal law and regulations, including the expenditure of 
resources for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to audit under Circular A-133 of 
the Office of Management and Budget of the United States of America (OMB Circular A-133 ). 
Disallowance as a result of these audits may become liabilities of the Municipality 

Management Agreement of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049) 

The Municipality maintains entered into a management agreement with GR Management Corp., for 
the administration of Villas del Parque (Fm HA Project No. 63-033-0690660049). Management fees 
amounted to $45,360 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and consist of a monthly fixed payment 
established in the Administrative Notice PR AN No. 125 (Inst. 1930-C). 
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As of June 30, 20 I 2, fund balance (deficit) is comprised of the following: 

Fund balances (deficit) 
Restricted for: 

General government 
Urban and economic development 
Public housing and welfare 
Culture and recreation and education 
Capital outlays 
Debt service 

Committed ro: 
General government 
Urban and economic development 
Health and sanitation 
Culture and recreation and education 

General 
Fund 

$ 118.485 

Debt II tad 
Service Start CDBG 

Fund Fund Funds 

2.405,289 

Capital 
Improvement 

Bond fund 

3,050,624 

Other 
nonmajor 

funds 

8,057 
53.332 
79,401 

178,679 
58,755 

64,421 
157,164 
80,293 

178,140 

Unassigned ___,,<~L..,..05_,4....,,7_12~>--------------------------
Total fund balances (deficit) $ (936,227) 2,405,289 3,050,624 858,242 

====================================================== 

15. Subsequent Events 

Total 

$ 126,542 
53,332 
79,401 

178,679 
3,109,379 
2,405,289 

64,421 
157,164 
80,293 

178, 140 
(l_.054,712) 

s 5,377,928 

On September 20 I 2, the Municipality issued a General Obligation Bond, amounting to $685,000. 
The net proceed will be used to carry out certain capital improvements programs authorized by law. 

On January 2013, the Municipality's Legislature approved a Municipal Ordinance to impose a new 
tax rates on real and personal property located within the jurisdiction of the Municipality of Juana 
Diaz. Such new tax rates will be effective at January I, 2013. 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 3 I, 20 I 3, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

End of Notes to Basic Financial statements 
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 
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Budgeted amounts 

Revenues: Original 
Property taxes 
Municipal license taxes 
Sales taXes 
Construction excise taxes 
Intergovernmental grants and contributions 
Interest on deposits 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General government 
Urban and economic development 
Health and sanitation 
Public safety 
Public housing and welfare 
Culture, recreation and education 
Capital outlays 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures and encumbrances 

Reconciliation of differences: 
Sources/inflows of financial resources: 

s 3.636,290 
1,854,455 
1.617.732 
2.193,437 
5.430,869 

66.500 
430.000 
403.500 

15.632,783 

5.062,407 
5,469,068 
1,797,453 
1.746.965 

237,793 
1,260,397 

58.700 
15.632.783 

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriations" 
from the budgetary comparison schedule 
Differences - budgetary basis to GAAP: 

Differences in bases of accounting: 
GAAP adjustment to revenues 
Total revenues and as reported on the statement of 

revenues. expenditures and changes in fund balances 

Uses/outflows of financial resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" 

$ 

from the budgetary comparison schedule (including transfer out to other funds) 
Differences - budgetary basis to GAAP: 

Timing differences: 
Current year encumbrances recorded as expenditures for budgetary purposes 
Prior year encumbrances recorded as expenditures for GAAP purposes 

Entity differences: 
Non-budgeted expenditures 

Total expenditures and transfer out to other funds as reported on the 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 
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Final 
3,636,290 
1,854,455 
1,6 17,732 
2.193.437 
5,430,869 

66,500 
430.000 
403.500 

15,632,783 

5,004,399 
5,492,153 
1,654,764 
1,648.836 

238,879 
1,489,240 

104.512 
15,632,783 

Actual amounts Variance with 

(budgetary final budget -

basis) over (under) 
$ 3.939.374 s 303.084 

1,913,327 58,872 
1.727,241 109,509 
1.848.392 (345,045) 
5,155.027 (275,842) 

198,440 131 ,940 
557.403 127,403 
411 ,329 7,829 

15,750.533 117,750 

4,770,043 234,356 
5,200,609 291,544 
1.654.252 512 
1,648.762 74 

238,559 320 
1,488,562 678 

95,71 5 8,797 
15,096.502 536,281 

654.031 654.031 

$ 15, 750,533 

128,571 

$ 15.879,104 

$ 15,096,502 

(80,303) 
102,296 

1,165.230 

$ 16,283.725 
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The Municipality's annual budget is prepared under the budgetary basis of accounting, which is 
not in accordance with GAAP. 

Under the budgetary basis of accounting, revenues are generally recognized when cash is 
received. Short-term and long-term borrowings may be used to finance budgetary excess of 
expenditures over revenues. 

Under the budgetary basis of accounting, the Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to 
record the full amount of purchase orders, contracts and other commitments of appropriated 
resources as deductions from the appropriation prior the actual expenditure. In the governmental 
funds, encumbrances accounting is a significant aspect of budgetary control. Accordingly, 
expenditures are generally recorded when the related expenditure is incurred or encumbered. 
Available appropriations and encumbrances are established to lapse one year after the end of 
fiscal year. Amounts required to settle claims and judgments against the Municipality, and 
certain other liabilities, are not recognized until they are encumbered or otherwise processed for 
payment. Unencumbered appropriations and encumbrances lap at year-end. Other 
appropriations, mainly capital projects appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the 
Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried 
forward and made available for current spending. 

The accompanying Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund, provides information about 
the general fund's original budget, the amendments made to such budget, and the actual general 
fund's results of operations under the budgetary basis of accounting for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2012. 

Except for the General Fund and the Debt Service Fund, the Municipality legally does not adopt 
budgets for its major special revenues and capital projects funds. Accordingly, neither 
accompanying basic financial statements, nor required supplementary information includes 
statements or revenues and expenditures - budget and actual-budgetary basis, or budgetary 
comparison schedules, respectively, for these major programs. 
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Federal 
Federal Grantor I Pass-Through Grantor I CFDA Entity Identifying 

Program or Cluster Title Number Number 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE: 

Pass-through the Department of Education of 
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico: 

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 CCC-250 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 

Pass-through the Transit Safety Commission 
of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico: 

Alcohol Impaired Driving Counter Measures 
Incentive Grants 20.601 N/AV 

Pass-through the Puerto Rico Highway and 
Transportation Authority: 

Federal Transit - Metropolitan Planning 
Grants 20.505 27-09/ 2008-001452 

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT: 

Direct Programs: 

Community Development Block Grants/ 
Entitlement Grants 14.218 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Program 14.871 

ARRA - Homelessness Prevention and 
Rapid Re- housing Program 14.257 

Pass-through the Office of the Commissioner 
of Municipal Affairs of the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico: 

Community Development Block Grants/ 
State's Program 14.228 20 l 0-003 162 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development 
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Federal 
Ex~enditures 

589,938 

589,938 

47,763 

35,241 

83,004 

2,067,686 

754,524 

222,983" 

673,944 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS (CONTINUATION) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Federal 
Federal Grantor I Pass-Through Grantor I CFDA Entity Identifying Federal 

Program or Cluster Title Number Number Ex~enditures 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND 
HUMAN SERVICE: 

Pass-Through - State Administration for 
Children and Families: 

241-2011-000345 
Head Start Program 93.600 241-2012-000179 6,347,805 

Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 N/AV 120,568 

Pass-Through the Municipality of Ponce, P.R. 

HIV Emergency Rel ief Project Grant 93.914 N/AV 161 ,393 

Total U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Service 6,629,766 

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND 
SECURITY: 

Pass-Through the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico - Governor Authorized Representative 
(GAR) 

Homeland Security Grants Program 97.067 N/AV 66,682 

Total Department of Homeland Security 66,682 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY: 

Direct Programs: 

ARRA - Energy Efficiency and 
Conservation Block Grant Program 81.128 37,511 

Total Department of Energy 372511 

TOT AL EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AW ARDS $ 11,126,038 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal Awards 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICfPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

NOTE I-GENERAL 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
Municipality of Juana Diaz, Puerto Rico (Municipality) and is presented on the modified accrual basis. The 
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in 
this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general-purpose 
financial statements. The reporting entity is defined in Note ( 1) (A) to the general-purpose combined 
financial statements. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared from Municipality's 
accounting records and is not intended to present financial position or the results of operations. 

2. The Municipality in accordance with the terms records the financial transactions and conditions of the 
grants, which are consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

3. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred, if measurable or 
when actually paid, whichever occurs first. 

NOTE 3 - FEDERAL CFDA NUMBER 

The CFDA numbers included in this Schedule are determined based on the program name, review of grant 
contract information and the Office of Management and Budget's Catalogue of Federal Domestic 
Assistance. 

NOTE 4 - PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR'S NUMBER 

State or local government redistribution of federal awards to the Municipality, treated as if they were 
received directly from the federal government. OMB Circular A-133 requires the schedule to include the 
name of the pass-through entity and identifying number assigned by the pass-through entity for federal 
awards received as a sub recipient. Numbers identified as N/AV are not available. 

NOTES - MAJOR PROGRAMS 

Major programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor' s Results Section of the Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs. 
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PEDRO C. ORTIZ LEDEE 
CERT IFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANT 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT O N INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Juana Diaz, Puerto Rico 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Municipality of Juana Diaz, Puerto Rico 
(Municipality), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the 
Municipality's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2013. Our 
report includes a reference to other auditors. The report on the governmental fund financial statements was 
unqualified. In addition, we did not express an opinion on the governmental wide financial statements 
because we were unable to obtain sufficient and competent evidential matter related to the capital assets of 
the Municipality, and the liability for closure and post closure care cost of the landfill. Except as discussed 
in the preceding sentence, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the 
financial statements of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049), a business-type activity 
(proprietary fund), as described in our report on the Municipality's financial statements. This report does 
not include the results of other auditors' testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance 
and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of Municipality is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Municipality's internal control 
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Municipality's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Municipal ity's internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not design to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no 
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. 
However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified 
certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses 
and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

P.O. Box 352, Palmer Street, No. 66 North, Guayama, P.R. 00785 
Tel (787) 864-5490 - fax (787) 864-5590 - cpapedroc@hotmail.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the 
deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be material 
weaknesses. Findings 12-11-02 and 12-11-03. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We 
consider the deficiencies described in the accompany Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be 
significant deficiencies. Finding 12-II-O I. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality' s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings 
and Questioned Costs as item 12-11-02 and 12-II-03. 

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Municipality in a separate letter 
dated March 31, 2013. 

T he Municipality's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the Municipality's response and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the. management, the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Municipal Legislature, the Office of the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs, others within 
the entity and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

f:R-Cnt-~ 
Pedro C. Ortiz L;~?cPA 
License Number 5200 

Guayama, Puerto Rico 
March 31, 2013 
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PEDRO C. ORTIZ LEDEE 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANT 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT 
COULD HA VE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-

133 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Member of the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of Juana Diaz, Puerto Rico 

Compliance 

We have audited Municipality of Juana Diaz, Puerto Rico (Municipality) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of Municipality's major federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2012. The Municipality's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is 
the responsibility of the Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
Municipality's compliance based on our audit. 

The Municipality's basic financial statements include the financial statements of Villas de! Parque (FmHA 
Project No. 63-033-0690660049) (Villas de! Parque), a proprietary fund which Single Audit report reflect 
total revenues and expenditures (expenses) of $443,848 and $491 ,987, respectively, for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2012. Other auditors audited the compliance of Villas de! Parque, with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the US. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to the major program of Villas de! Parque for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2012. This report does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of compliance or 
internal control over compl iance that are reported on separately by those auditors. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133 , Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to afove that could have a direct and material effect on 
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Municipality's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination on the Municipality's compliance with those requirements. 

As described in items 12-III- 12 and 12-IIl-13 in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs, the Municipality did not comply with requirements regarding Davis Bacon Act and Procurement and 
Suspension and Debarment, that are applicable to its Community Development Block Grants - State's 
Program. Compliance with such requirement is necessary, in our opinion, for the Municipality to comply 
with the requirements applicable to that program. 

P.O. Box 352, Palmer Street, No. 66 North, Guayama, P.R. 00785 
Tel. (787) 864-5490 - fax (787) 864-5590 - cpapedroc@hotmail.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT 
COULD HA VE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB cmcULAR A-

133 (CONTINUED) 

ln our opinion, the Municipality complied,~fo all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 20 I 2. The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of 
noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB 
Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
as items 12-III-04, 12-III-05, 12-Jil-06, 12-III-07, 12-Ill-08, 12-Ill-09, 12-lfI-10 and 12-III-11. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Municipality is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered Municipality' s internal control over compliance with 
the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control over compliance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that 
all deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as discussed 
below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we considered to be 
material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program wi ll 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as 
items 12-IH- 12 and 12-11[- 13 to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We considered the deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned costs as 
items 12-III-04, 12-III-05, 12-III-06, 12-IIl-07, 12-Irl-08, 12-fll-09, 12-III- IO and 12-III- l l to be 
significant deficiencies. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT 
COULD HA VE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-

133 (CONTINUED) 

The Municipality's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the Municipality' s responses and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses. 

This report is intended solely for the infonnation and use of the management, the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Municipal Legislature, the Office of the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs, others within 
the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

)/0 _£ ~-r 
ied~ Ortiz L;d6~~~ 
License Number 5200 

Guayama, Puerto Rico 
March 31, 2013 

2671578 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA Di.AZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION I-SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness identified? 
Significant deficiencies identified? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal awards 

Internal Control over major programs: 
Material weakness identified? 
Significant deficiencies identified? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 

Unqualified for fund financial 
statement and disclaimer of opinion 
in the government wide financial 
statements 

Yes X 
Yes X 

Yes X 

Yes X 
Yes X 

No 
None reported 

No 

No 
None reported 

Unqualified, except qualified for 
Community Development Block 
Grants I State's Program 

in accordance with Circular A-1 33, Section .510(a)? Yes X No 

Identification of major programs 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 

14.218 

14.228 

14.871 

93.600 

Community Development Block Grants - Entitlement Grants 

Community Development Block Grants/ State' s Program 

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 

Head Start Program 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FINDING 

REQUIREMENT 

CONDITION 

CONTEXT 

CRITERIA 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

RECOMMENDATION 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS 

12-11-01 

ACCOUNTING RECORDS AND REPORTING SYSTEM 

The Municipality did not maintain complete accounting records. 

During our examination of the accounting system, we noted that the 
Municipality does not summarize the transactions in a fonnal general 
ledger in order to properly record and account for the transactions of the 
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. In addition, during our cash 
test, we noted that the Municipality does not have effective internal control 
procedures to ensure the prompt preparation of the bank reconciliations 

Article 8.010 (c) of State Act Number 81- Ley de Municipios Autonomos 
def Estado Libre Asociado de Puerto Rico of August 30, 1991, states that 
uniform accounting system used by the Municipality must produce reliable 
reports and financial statements, provide complete information about the 
results of operations of the Municipality and include the necessary internal 
controls to account for all funds, capital assets and other assets. In Chapter 
fV, Section 12 of the Municipal Administration Regulatory Manual of the 
Puerto Rico Commissioner' s Office for Municipal Affair (OCAM), 
establishes that the accounting system of the municipalities shall provide 
for the timely and accurate preparation of bank reconciliations. 

The Municipality has not established effective internal control procedures 
over the preparation of the financial statements and the transactions 
recorded on its accounting records. 

The Municipality is not in compliance with Article 8.010 (b) (c) of the 
State Law Number 81 of August 30, 1991. In addition, Chapter JV, Section 
12 of the Municipal Administration Regulatory Manual of the Puerto Rico 
Commissioner's Office for Municipal Affair (OCAM). 

We recommend management to establish the necessary internal controls 
and procedures in order to establish a complete accounting system that 
provides for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
GAAP. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION II-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS 

FINDING 12-11-01 (CONTINUED) 

REQUIREMENT ACCOUNTING RECORDS AND REPORTING SYSTEM 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN The Municipality maintains two set of accounting records; a manual 
system and a uniform computerized accounting system. Actually, the 
manual system is the primary source of financial information for financial 
statements preparation. In addition, our administration implemented new 
accounting software for the revenues transactions. We are evaluating if it is 
cost effective acquire this system for all the accounting cycle. 

Implementation Date: June 30, 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Efrain Nunez- Finance Department Director 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FINDING 

REQUIREMENT 

CONDITION 

CONTEXT 

CRITERIA 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

RECOMMENDA TJON 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS 

12-11-02 

ACCOUNTING RECORDS- CAPITAL ASSETS 

The Municipality does not have an effective system to account for capital 
assets, including the infrastructure assets. 

During our examination of the property records, we noted that the 
Municipality does not have adequate internal controls and procedures to 
ensure that all capital outlay expenditures and dispositions are recorded in 
the capital assets subsidiary ledger. Also, the Municipality has not recorded 
a ll the infrastructure assets, accordingly, has not recorded depreciation 
expenses for those assets. These infrastructure assets should be reported as 
part of the capital assets of the Municipality according to Statement No. 34 
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB 34). In addition, 
the Municipality did not perfonned periodical physical inventories of its 
capital assets. 

Article 8.010 (c) (3) of the State Law Number 81- Ley de Municipios 
Autonomos de/ Estado Libre Asociados de Puerto Rico de 1991 of August 
30, 1991, stated that Municipality should maintain updated property 
accounting records. 

The Municipality did not maintain an adequate control of the 
accountability of its capital assets. 

The Municipality is not in compliance with Article 8.010 (c) (3) of the 
State Law Number 81 of August 30, 1991. 

We recommend management and the Property Division of the 
Municipality to make an inventory of the capital assets, support it with 
adequate documentation and reconcile it with the capital assets subsidiary 
ledger. 

ANO CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN We gave instructions to the Property Division to update the capital assets 
inventory and with the help of our external consultants we are going to 
reconcile the inventory with the subsidiary ledger and identify possible 
differences. 

Implementation Date: December 31, 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Efrain Nunez- Finance Department Director 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FINDING NUMBER 

REQUIREMENT 

CONDITION 

CONTEXT 

CRITERIA 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

RECOMMENDATION 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS 

12-11-03 

ACCOUNTING RECORDS­
LANDFILL CLOSURE AND 
MAINTENANCE COSTS 

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE 
POSTCLOSURE CARE AND 

The Municipality did not adjust in its government wide financial 
statements, the required liability for closure and post closure care costs 
based on an adequate study of the activities of the solid waste landfill. 

At June 30, 2012, the Municipality did not realize the required study of the 
available space and the estimated cost of the closing and post closing of the 
Municipality's waste landfill. In addition, the amount of expenses recorded 
in the financial statements is based on an estimate made by the 
Municipality's management. 

Regulations set forth by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
in its "Solid Waste Disposal Facility Criteria" ; the Municipality is required 
to place a final cover on the Municipality's solid waste landfill site when it 
stops accepting waste, and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring 
functions at the site for 30 years after closure. GASB 18 requires the 
Municipality to perform a study of the activities that need to be 
implemented at the Municipality's solid waste landfill facilities to 
guarantee the maximum yield of available space and to comply with 
applicable state and federal regulations. Based on this study, the 
Municipality must recognize a liability in its statement of net assets at June 
30, 2012. 

The Municipality did not maintain an adequate control of the 
accountability of the closure and post closure care costs of Municipal solid 
waste landfill. ln addition, the Municipality did not perform the study 
required by EPA and GASB 18. 

The Municipality is not in compliance with GASB 18 and the "Solid Waste 
Disposal Facility Criteria" issued by the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency. 

We recommend management to perform the study of the activities that 
need to be implemented at the Municipality's solid waste landfill facilities 
and determine the amount of the liability that should be reported in the 
governmental activities. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAz 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FINDING NUMBER 

REQUIREMENT 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS 

12-11-03 (CONTINUED) 

ACCOUNTING RECORDS- MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE 
LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE AND 
MAINTENANCE COSTS 

AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN The Municipality will request proposals to acquire a professional service, 
in order to determine the amount of the liability that should be reported in 
the governmental-wide statement of net assets. 

Implementation Date: July l, 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Efrain Nunez- Finance Department Director 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION ID - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

CONDITION 

CONTEXT 

CRITERIA 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

RECOMMENDATION 

12-UI-04 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT­
ENTITLEMENT GRANT (CFDA NO. 14.218) U.S. DEPARTMENT 
OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

ALLOW ABLE ACTIVITIES - HOUSEKEEPING SERVICES 

The Program failed to maintained appropriate supporting documentation 
regarding the housekeeping services participant's files. 

As part of our grant disbursement test, we examined five (5) Housekeeping 
Services participant's files and noted that the Program was not assuring 
that all the required forms established in the operational guides were 
completed. 

Code of Federal Regulations 24, 85 .20 (a) (I) states that fiscal control and 
accounting procedures of subgrantees, must be sufficient to permit the 
tracing of funds to a level of expenditures adequate to establish that funds 
have not been used in violation of the restrictions and prohibitions of 
applicable statutes. Also, the Municipality has an operational guide 
"Manual Operacional Programa Auxiliares del Hogar" that includes all 
procedures and program's requirements for housekeeping services. 

The Program's internal controls procedures failed to assure that all 
required information regarding participants were obtained and that the 
required interviews, visits and inspections to monitor the services were 
realized in accordance with the operational guide. 

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 24, 
85.20 (a)(!) and with the operational guide. 

We recommend management to implement adequate internal controls and 
procedures in order to assure that the program staff completes all the 
required forms and to inspect and monitor the services in accordance with 
the regulations and the operational guide. 
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COM1'10NWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS At'lD QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION Ill - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING 12-ID-04 (CONTINUED) 

FEDERAL PROGRAM COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT­
ENTITLEMENT GRANT (CFDA NO. 14.218) U.S. DEPARTMENT 
OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

REQUIREMENT COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

NONCOMPLIANCE ALLOW ABLE ACTIVITIES­
HOUSEKEEPING SERVICES 

QUESTIONED COSTS None 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN We will give instructions to the Housing Rehabilitation coordinator to 
assure that all the required fonns are adequately completed and the visits 
made to the participants are properly documented. 

Implementation Date: April I, 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Carlos Melendez- Federal Programs Director 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION Ill - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING 

FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

REQUlREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

CONDITION 

CONTEXT 

CRITERIA 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

R ECOMMENDATION 

12-111-05 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT­
ENTITLEMENT GRANT (CFDA NO. 14.218) U.S. DEPARTMENT 
OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

PROGRAM INCOME 

The Program did not comply with the Program Income requirement. 

During our Program Income test, we noted that the Municipality has not 
determined the portion of the income of two projects that corresponds to 
CDBG. Therefore, the transactions of CDBG's program income were not 
properly recorded in the accounting records. 

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Subpart J, Section 570.504 (a), stated that 
the receipts and expenditures of program income shall be recorded as part 
of the financial transactions of the grant program. 

The Program does not maintained appropriate accounting records over the 
program income transactions. 

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 24, 
Subpart J, Section 570.504 (a). 

We recommend management to implement adequate procedures to ensure 
that the financial transactions related to the program income are properly 
recorded in the accounting records of the Program. In addition, we 
recommend identifying the sources of funding of those projects and made 
an allocation and determine the portion of program income that 
corresponds to CDBG. 

QUESTIONED COSTS None 

MANAGEME~T RESPONSE 

AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PUN We will continue to identify the amount of funds invested in the 
construction projects were CDBG match funds. Once we determined the 
amount of program income that corresponds to the Program we will 
include it in the accounting records. 

Implementation Date: April 30, 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Carlos Melendez- Federal Programs Director 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING NUMBER 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

CONDITION 

CONTEXT 

CRITERIA 

12-111-06 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT­
ENTITLEMENT GRANT (CFDA NO. 14.2 18) U.S. DEPARTMENT 
OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

SPECIAL TEST- REHABILITATION 

The Program failed to maintain appropriate supporting documentation 
regarding the inspections of the rehabilitation work upon its completion, in 
accordance with the contracts specifications. 

During our Special Test- Rehabilitation, we examined six (6) participant's 
files and noted the following conditions: 

a. For two (2) partici pants, we did not found evidence that the 
rehabilitation work was performed. Participant's files did not 
include photos after rehabilitation, fina l visit documentation and 
closing certification. 

b. In one (I) case, there was only one follow-up visit documented in 
file. Also, for this case, the documentation of the follow-up visit 
and the final visit were not signed by the participant. 

c. One ( l) contract was not signed by the participant. 

d. In one (I) participant's file, there was no evidence of property title. 

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Section 570.506 (b) state that at .a 
minimum, the grantee should maintain records demonstrating that each 
activity undertaken meets one of the three national objectives of the CDBG 
Program. Also, Code of Federal Regulations 24, Sect ion 570.506 (b) (9) 
states that when CDBG Entitlement Grant funds are used for residential 
rehabilitation activity to aid in the prevention or el imination of slums or 
blight in a slum or blighted area, the grantee must maintain records to 
support the local definition of "substandard", must document a pre­
rehabilitation inspection report describing the deficiencies in each structure 
to be rehabilitated, and must document the details in each structure to be 
rehabilitated, and must document the details and scope of CDBG assisted 
rehabilitation, by structure. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION 111- FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING NUMBER 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

RECOMMENDATION 

QUESTIONED COSTS 

M ANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

12-111-06 (CONTINUED) 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT­
ENTITLEMENT GRANT (CFDA NO. 14.218) U.S. DEPARTMENT 
OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

SPECIAL TEST- REHABfLITATION 

The Municipality' s internal controls and procedures failed to assure that 
the required unit 's inspections were perfonned in accordance with the 
Federal regulation. In addition, the Program fai led to maintain an adequate 
control to assure that all required documentation is obtained and included 
in the participant's file. 

The Municipality is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 
24, Section 570.506 (b) and (b) (9). 

We recommend management to follow its procedures in order that the 
Program's personnel inspects the rehabilitation works to assure that is 
carried out in accordance with the Federal regulation. In addition, 
management should assure that require documentation is obtained and 
included in the participant's file. 

None 

AND CORRECTIVE A(TION PLAN We will give instructions to the Program Director to fo llow up the usage of 
the material given to the participants through on-site visits and to assure 
that required documentation is maintained in the participant's file. 

Implementation Date: April 30, 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Carlos Melendez- Federal Programs Director 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING NUMBER 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

CONDITION 

CONTEXT 

CRITERIA 

CA USE 

EFFECT 

RECOMMENDATION 

12-111-07 

HEAD ST ART (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTME NT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO- ADMINISTRATION 
FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL DEVELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD 
(A CUD EN) 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

CASH MANAGEMENT 

The Programs did not minimize the time between the receiving of the 
request of funds from the pass-through entity and the disbursement of 
funds. 

During our Cash Management test, we noted that the Head Start Program 
maintained an average cash balance of approximately $128,628 in books. 
In addition, the Programs did not disbursed in a timely manner the request 
of funds advanced by the pass-through entity. 

Code of Federal Regulation 45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (7) states that 
the Program must maintain procedures for minimizing the time elapsing 
between the transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury and disbursement 
made by grantees and sub grantees when advance payment procedures are 
used. 

The Programs did not maintain appropriate cash management procedures 
in order to disburse the funds requested to the pass-through entity in a 
timely manner. 

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 45, 
Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (7). 

We recommended management to continue strengthening its disbursement 
procedures to minimize the time between the transfer of funds by the pass 
through entity and the disbursements made by the Programs. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA Di:AZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING NUMBER 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

QUESTIONED COSTS 

MANAGEMENT RESPO~SE 

12-IIl-07 (CONTINUED) 

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO- ADMINISTRATION 
FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL DEVELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD 
(A CUD EN) 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

CASH MANAGEMENT 

None 

AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLA~ It is our opinion that the requ1s1tion of funds system established by 
ACUDEN, the pass-through agency, has been followed by us in 
compliance with the grant agreement clauses. 

Implementation Date: Not Applicable 
Responsible Person: Mr. Gerardo Carrasquillo- Program Director 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION 111 - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING 

FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

CONDITION 

CONDITION 

CRJTERIA 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

RECOMMENDATION 

12-ID-08 

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO- ADMINISTRATION 
FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL DEVELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD 
(A CUD EN) 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

PROCUREMENT AND SUS~ENSION AND DEBARMENT 

The Program disbursed funds during fiscal year 20 l l-2012 not in 
accordance with the adequate procurement process established by the 
Federal and State regulations. 

During our grant disbursements test, we examined forty five (45) non 
payroll checks from the Head Start and noted that during the fi scal year 
2011-2012, the Program maintained contracts with one ( 1) dentist 
specialized in children, without requesting proposals from an adequate 
number of qualified professionals. 

Code of Federal Regulations 45, 92.36 (c) (!),states that all procurement 
transactions will be conducted in a manner providing full and open 
competition consistent with the standards of 92.36. 

The Program does not performed an appropriate procurement process 
because fai led to request quotations from an adequate number of qualified 
sources. 

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 45, 
92.36 (c) (1). 

We recommend management to implement procedures in order to obtain 
and maintain all the required documentation regards the procurement 
process to comply with this requirement. Also, the Municipality should be 
aware that all the bidders are professionally qualified and are bidding for 
the services that are being requested. In addition, we recommend 
management to request and obtain at least three (3) quotations from 
suppliers and then adjudicate the purchase to the supplier that presents the 
lower price and the most advantageous conditions for the Program. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION ill - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING 

FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

QUESTIONED COSTS 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

12-III-08 (CONTINUED) 

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO- ADMINISTRATION 
FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL DEVELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD 
(A CUD EN) 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

PROCUREMENT AND SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT 

None 

AND CORRECTIVE ACTIOl\ PLAN As part of the corrective action plan, we will give instructions to the 
Purchase Division of the Municipality to request proposal of at least three 
suppliers and assure that the adjudication process is for the lower bidder 
and the most advantageous conditions for the Program. 

Implementation Date: April 31 , 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Gerardo Carrasquillo- Program Director 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING NUMBER 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

CONDITION 

CONTEXT 

CRITERIA 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

RECOMMENDATION 

QUESTIONED COSTS 

12-111-09 

CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 10.558) 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO- DEPARTMENT OF 
EDUCATION 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

CASH MANAGEMENT 

The Program did not minimize the time between the receiving of the 
request of funds from the pass-through entity and the disbursement of 
funds. 

During our Cash Management test, we noted that during the fiscal year 
2011-2012, the Program maintained an average monthly cash balance of 
approximately $164,000 in books. In addition, we noted that Program 
requested funds to the pass-through entity that were not disbursed on a 
reasonable lapse of time. 

Code of Federal Regulations 7, Subpart C, Section 3016.20 (b) (7) states, 
procedures for minimizing the time elapsing between the transfer of funds 
from the U.S. Treasury and disbursement by grantees and subgrantees must 
be followed. 

The Program and Finance Department of the Municipality did not maintain 
appropriate cash management procedures in order to request funds to the 
pass-through only for immediate needs. 

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 7, 
Subpart C, Section 3016.20 (b) (7). 

We recommend management to strengthen its disbursements procedures to 
minimize the time between the transfer of funds by the state and 
disbursement made by the Municipality. 

None 
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JlJNE 30, 2012 

SECTION III - FEDERAL A WARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING NUMBER 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

12-I0-09 (CONTINUED) 

CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM (CFDA N0.10.558) 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO- DEPARTMENT OF 
EDUCATION 

COMPLIANCE AND U~TERNAL CONTROL 

CASH MANAGEMENT 

Mm CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN We gave instructions to the Program's Finance Department and the 
Finance Department of the Municipality to issue the checks in 
approximately three (3) days once the transfers of funds from the State are 
received. 

Implementation Date: April I, 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Gerardo Carrasquillo- Program Director 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING NUMBER 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

CONDITION 

CONTEXT 

CRITERIA 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

RECOMMENDATION · 

QUESTIONED COSTS 

12-IJI-10 

CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRA1"1 (CFDA NO. 10.558) 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO- DEPARTMENT OF 
EDUCATION 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

PROCUREMENT, SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT TESTS 

The Program did not include in the contracts, all the clauses required by the 
Federal regulations. 

During our Procurement- Contract Clauses test, we examined one (l) food 
supplier contract to verify the completeness of its clauses and noted that 
various required clauses were missing. 

Code of Federal Regulations 7, Section 226.22 (I) states that in addition to 
provisions defining a sound and complete procurement contract, 
institutions shall include the contract provisions or conditions in all 
procurement contracts and subcontracts as required by the provision, 
Federal Law or FNS. 

The Program did not maintain appropriate procurement standard 
procedures to assure that contracts include all the required clauses. 

The Municipality is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 7, 
Section 226.22 (1). 

We recommend management to update the contract model according with 
the Federal requirements. 

None 
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FINDING NUMBER 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

'.\'IANAGEME'.\T RESPONSE 

12-111-10 (CONTINUED) 

CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 10.558) 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO- DEPARTMENT OF 
EDUCATION 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

PROCUREMENT, SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT TESTS 

AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PL\N We will give orders to the Contract Division of the Municipality to update 
and include the required clauses to this type of contract. 

Implementation Date: April 31 , 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Gerardo Carrasquillo- Program Director 
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
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SECTION III - FEDERAL A WARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING NUMBER 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

CONDITION 

CONTEXT 

CRITERIA 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

RECOMMENDATION 

12-III-11 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT/ STATE'S 
PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 14.228) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING 
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO OFFICE OF 
COMMISSIONER OF MUNICCP AL AFFAIRS 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

ALLOWABLE COST/ COST PRINCIPLES 

During the fiscal year 201 1-2012, the Program disbursed funds without the 
appropriate supporting documentation. 

During our grant disbursement test, we e?'amined five (5) non payroll 
checks and noted that the corresponding purchases orders were issued after 
the goods were received. 

Code of Federal Regulation 24, Subpart C, Section 85.20 (b) (6) states that 
accounting records must be supported by such source documentation as 
cancelled checks, paid bills, payrolls, time and attendance records, contract 
and subgrant award documents, etc. 

The Program failed to appropriately review the payment vouchers and all 
the supporting documentation prior to the issuance of the payments. 

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 24, 
Subpart C, Section 85.20 (b) (6). 

We recommend management to continue strengthening the internal 
controls and procedures designed to appropriately review the payment 
voucher and all the supporting documentation prior to the issuance of a 
payment. 

QUESTIONED COSTS None 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 
AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PL\N We gave orders to the responsible employees to assure that authorized 

purchase orders are issued and registered before the receiving of goods and 
services. 

Implementation Date: April 30, 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Carlos Melendez- Federal Programs Director 
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SECTION III - FEDERAL A WARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING NUMBER 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

CONDITION 

CONTEXT 

CRITERIA 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

12-III-12 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT/ STATE'S 
PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 14.228) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING 
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO OFFICE OF 
COMMISSIONER OF MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

DA VIS-BACON ACT 

The Program disbursed funds without the payroll monitoring procedures 
required by the Davis-Bacon Act. 

During our grant disbursement test, we noted that the Programs disbursed 
funds for construction improvements for one ( 1) residence and found that 
the Programs has not establish adequate monitoring procedures to review 
the weekly payrolls. Also, the Programs are not assuring that the prevailing 
wages are paid to the contractors' employees. 

Davis- Bacon Act, 42 USC 5310. 

The Municipality failed to apply all the monitoring procedures developed 
to test applicable contractors with respect to the payment of prevailing 
wages. 

The Municipality is not in compliance with Davis- Bacon Act, 42 USC 
5310. 

RECOMMENDATION We recommended management to revise the contractor's payrolls to 
document, adequately, that the wages paid by the contractors are in 
accordance with the wages established by the Department of Labor and to 
realize the required interviews to the contractors' employees. 

QUESTIONED COSTS None 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN We will give instructions to the responsible employee to collect from the 
contractors the weekly payrolls and assure that the wages paid are in 
accordance with the rates established by the Department of Labor. 

Implementation Date: April 30, 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Carlos Melendez- Federal Programs Director 
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FINDING 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

CONDITION 

CONDITION 

CRITERIA 

CAUSE 

EFFECT 

RECOMMENDATION 

12-III-13 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT/ STATE'S 
PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 14.228) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING 
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO OFFICE OF 
COMMISSIONER OF MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

PROCUREMENT AND SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT 

The Program disbursed funds during fiscal year 2011-2012 not in 
accordance with the adequate procurement process established by the 
Federal and State regulations. 

During our procuremen~ test, noted that during the fiscal year 2011-2012, 
the Program maintained three (3) contracts for professional services, 
without requesting proposals from an adequate number of qualified 
professionals. 

Code of Federal Regulations 24, 85.36 (c) (1), states that all procurement 
transactions will be conducted in a manner providing full and open 
competition consistent with the standards of 85.36. 

The Program does not performed an appropriate procurement process 
because failed to request quotations from an adequate number of qualified 
sources. 

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 24, 
85.36 (c) (!). 

We recommend management to implement procedures in order to obtain 
and maintain all the required documentation regards the procurement 
process to comply with this requirement. Also, the Municipality should be 
aware that all the bidders are professionally qualified and are bidding for 
the services that are being requested. In addition, we recommend 
management to request and obtain at least three (3) quotations from 
suppliers and then adjudicate the purchase to the supplier that presents the 
lower price and the most advantageous conditions for the Program. 
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SECTION III - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FINDING 

FEDERAL PROGRAM 

REQUIREMENT 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

QUESTIONED COSTS 

MANAGEME~T RESPOl\SE 

12-111-13 (CONTINUED) 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT/ STATE'S 
PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 14.228) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING 
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT; PASS THROUGH 
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO - OFFICE OF 
COMMISSIONER OF MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS 

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

PROCUREMENT AND SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT 

None 

AND CORRECTIVE ACTIO~ PLAN As part of the corrective action plan, we will give instructions to the 
Purchase Division of the Municipality to request proposal of at least three 
suppliers and assure that the adj udication process is for the lower bidder 
and the most advantageous conditions for the Program. 

Implementation Date: April 30, 2013 
Responsible Person: Mr. Carlos Melendez- Federal Programs Director 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDIGS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

The following schedule contains the original number and title of each of the findings of federal awards 
included in the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal 
Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the Schedule of Prior Years' Audit 
Findings for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2012. The fo llowing legend indicates the current status of the 
prior years' audit findings: 

ORIGINAL 
FINDING CFDA 
NUMBER NUMBER 

I l -III-04 

11-fll-05 

ll -III-06 

l l -III-07 

l l-III-08 

14.218 

14.218 

14.218 

93.600 
93.708 

93.600 
93.708 

TITLE 

Allowable Activities- Housekeeping Services 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference 12-III-04 

Program Income 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the find ing for the current year. 
Finding reference 12-III-05 

Special Test- Rehabilitation 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference l 2-III-06 

Allowable Cost/ Cost Principal 

Full corrective action was taken. 

Cash Management 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor re issued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference 12-III-07 
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

ORIGINAL 
FINDING C FDA 
NUMBER NUMBER TITLE 

11-111-09 93.600 Davis- Bacon Act 
93.708 

11-111- 10 

ll-III-11 

1 l-III-12 

11-111- 13 

11-111-14 

93.600 

93.600 
93.708 

10.558 

10.558 

10.558 

Full corrective action was taken. 

Matching, Level of Effort and Earmarking 

Full corrective action was taken. 

Procurement, Suspension and Debarment 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference I 2-III-08 

Allowable Cost I Cost Principles 

Full corrective action was taken. 

Cash Management 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference 12-III-09 

Procurement, Suspension and Debarment 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference 12-111-10 
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ORIGINAL 
FINDING CFDA 
NUM BER NUM BER TITLE 

1 O- lll-06 14.21 8 Allowable Activities- Housekeeping Services 

IO-III-08 14.218 

I 0-III-09 93.600 

I O-III-10 93.600 

1 O-Ill-1 1 93.708 

10-111-12 93.600 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference l 2-IIl-04 

Special Test- Rehabilitation 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference l 2-III-06 

Allowable Cost/ Cost Principal 

Full corrective action was taken. 

Cash Management 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference l 2-IIl-07 

Davis- Bacon Act 

Full corrective action was taken. 

Matching, Level of Effort and Earmarking 

Full corrective action was taken. 
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDIGS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

ORIGINAL 
FINDING CFDA 
NUMBER NUMBER TITLE 

I 0-111-13 93.600 Procurement, Suspension and Debarment 

10-Ill-16 10.558 

10-IIl- 17 10.558 

I 0-III-18 10.558 

09-07 14.218 

09-09 93.600 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference l 2-HI-08 

Allowable Cost I Cost Principles 

Full corrective action was taken. 

Cash Management 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference l 2-III-09 

Procurement, Suspension and Debarment 

No corrective action has been taken. 
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year. 
Finding reference 12-III- I 0 

Special Test- Rehabilitation 

The audit fi nding does not warrant further action because two years have 
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred was submitted to 
the Federal clearinghouse. 

Cash Management 

The audit finding does not warrant further action because two years have 
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred was submitted to 
the Federal clearinghouse. 
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ORIGINAL 
FINDING C FDA 
NUMBER NUMBER TITLE 

09-10 93.600 Matching, Level of Effort and Earmarking 

09-12 93.600 

09-14 10.558 

09-15 10.558 

09-16 10.558 

The audit finding does not warrant further action because two years have 
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred was submitted to 
the Federal clearinghouse. 

Procurement, Suspension and Debarment 

The audit finding does not warrant further action because two years have 
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred was submitted to 
the Federal clearinghouse. 

Allowable Cost I Cost Principles 

The audit finding does not warrant further action because two years have 
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred was submitted to 
the Federal clearinghouse. 

Cash Ma nagement 

The audit finding does not warrant fu rther action because two years have 
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred was submitted to 
the Federal clearinghouse. 

Procurement, Suspension and Debarment 

The audit find ing does not warrant further action because two years have 
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred was submitted to 
the Federal clearinghouse. 
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